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At Au Housing Finance Limited 
(Au Housing), there were two 
alternatives when we went into 
business a couple of years ago. 

One, the convenient option to 
service an existing urban market 
and simply fight for market share. 

Two, the challenging option to grow 
our presence in under-penetrated 
rural geographies and create a 
market from scratch.

At Au Housing, we selected to 
address the more difficult reality.

The result is reflected in our 
numbers. Au Housing reported a 281 
percent increase in profit after 
tax to H7.19 crore in only its second 
year of existence in 2013-14.

Emphasising the saying that ‘Well 
begun is half the battle won’.



Au Housing Finance Limited. 

Dedicated to financing 
homes for India’s under 
served thousands. 

Especially those living in 
rural and semi-urban India. 

Helping grow India from the 
grassroots upwards. 

About us
Au Housing Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Au 

Financiers India Limited (AUFIN), was originally incorporated as a 

private limited company in February 2011.

 Au Housing is a housing finance company (HFC,) which was 

granted a certificate of registration by the National Housing  

Bank in 2011.

Au Housing was converted into a public limited company with a 

fresh certificate of incorporation in 2013.

Vision
Our vision is to enrich the lives of the people we touch, by providing 

access to housing finance in the un-served and underserved markets 

in India. We aspire to provide customised and uncomplicated 

home loan solutions to our customers. We aim to stay close and 

sympathetic to the needs of the customers. We strive to establish 

ourselves as a trustworthy, transparent and well-governed housing 

finance corporate.
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Parentage
  Incorporated in 1996, Au Financiers is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve 

Bank of India. 

  Spearheaded and founded by first generation entrepreneur Mr. Sanjay Agarwal, Au Financiers is amongst 

the fastest growing non-captive NBFCs in the country.

  While being present in the mortgage and housing business since 2010, Au Financiers created Au Housing 

Finance Ltd. with the objective to provide housing finance for lower-income households in rural and  

semi-urban India.

Product  
portfolio
  Loans for house purchases 

  Loans for house 

construction 

  Loans for house repair and 

renovation or extension 

Customer profile
  Provides housing loans in the un-served, unreached and 

underserved markets.

  Caters to customers belonging to the low and middle 

income segment in semi-urban and rural areas.

  Customer profile includes salaried or self-employed 

individuals like auto drivers, grocers, beauty parlour owners, 

carpenters, dealers, restaurants owners, and textile trades, 

among others.

Presence
  Headquartered in Jaipur, Rajasthan 

  Presence across Rajasthan, Gujarat, 

Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Delhi 

and Haryana through 35 branches

Presence
Rajasthan

Gujarat
Maharashtra

Madhya Pradesh

Delhi
Haryana

6

5

18

4
1 1
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This is how we strengthened 
our business in 2013-14 

Performance
  221 percent growth in interest income from housing loans – from  

H17.59 crore in 2012-13 to H56.55 crore

  281 percent growth in profit after tax from H1.89 crore in 2012-13 

to H7.19 crore

Profitability
  5 bps reduction in gross NPAs from 0.27 percent in 2012-13 to 

0.22 percent in 2013-14

  200 bps increase in net profit margin from 10.72 percent in  

2012-13 to 12.71 percent in 2013-14

  1014 bps increase in return on equity from 6.70 percent in  

2012-13 to 16.84 percent in 2013-14

Business
  51.59 percent growth in sanctions from H194.68 crore in 2012-13 

to H295.12 crore in 2013-14

  51.79 percent growth in disbursements from H184.43 crore in  

2012-13 to H279.94 crore in 2013-14

  129 percent growth in the total loans portfolio from H177.50 crore 

in 2012-13 to H406.22 crore in 2013-14

Our focus
The Company focuses on serving 

customers mainly in rural and 

semi-urban areas which are 

classified as un-served and 

underserved markets. The 

Company has been able to fulfill 

the dreams of around 8,000 

people over the past two years of 

owning a home in rural and  

semi-urban areas.

Urban Rural/semi-urban

Focus on the rural and  
semi-urban segments

Above H10 lac H5 lac to H10 lac 

Up to H5 lac 

Low ticket size

18
.3

6%

81
.6

4%

24
.91

%

46
.3

3%

28.76%
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Customer profile 

Rajasthan
Gujarat Madhya Pradesh
Delhi and NCR

Maharashtra

Geography-wise

52.12%

31.76%

11.19%

2.83%
2.10%

House purchase
Repair and renovation

House construction

Product-wise 

58%

39%

3%

<= 50%
> 60% to 70% > 70% to 80%
> 80%

> 50% to 60%

Loan to value (LTV)

House purchase
Repair and renovation

House construction

Installment-to-income ratio  

Up to H3 lac
H6 lac and above

H3 lac to H6 lac

Income-wise

Self-employed Salaried

Customer-wise

58%

42%
34%

45
%

20%

De-risked portfolio 

71.49%

12.49%

9.97%

5.70%
0.22%

36.48%

57.24%

6.11%

0.17%

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED    



Au Housing. 
Contributing  

to the 
country’s 

growth 

Au 
Housing 
finance 
limited.

82 %
Proportion of financing in rural and 
semi urban locations 

H 279.94 crore 
Total financing till 31 March 2014

Right 
company

Right 
needs

Right 
time

Right 
place

In the right place
  Buying one’s home is a basic human requirement. 

This need is universal whether in the urban or rural 

India.

  In India, the presence of this industry is skewed; 

even as rural India accounts for 69 percent of the 

country’s population, it accounts for only a small 

proportion of the country’s housing finance industry.

  India’s increasing incomes (lower-middle class 

and middle-class), growing urbanisation and rising 

youth population are creating a market of 90 million 

households ready for home purchase.

  A housing shortage of almost 63 million units 

represents an impediment and an opportunity. 

The demand for houses is expected to increase by 

26.3 million units in the next three years due to 

population growth (Source: Moneycontrol).

  Home purchase is increasingly preferred (over 

renting) due to rising property prices, attractive tax 

breaks and increased family nuclearisation.

Servicing the right needs
  At Au Housing, we realise that the small loans 

segment is the largest and the most underserved in 

India; this space is marked by a virtual absence of 

large and respected financial institutions. 

  Au Housing selected to grow its industry presence 

by ensuring repayment convenience complemented 
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120 months
Average tenure of loans, 2013-14

H 6.74 lac 
Average ticket size of business conducted 
in 2013-14

33.86 %
Average installment-to-income ratio, 2013-14 

41.34 %
Average loan-to-value ratio, 2013-14

by best-in-class services and simplified loan 

procedures.  

  Au Housing believes that every customer 

is unique; the Company customises its 

housing finance offerings around individual 

needs. 

  Au Housing recruited a combination of 

qualified industry professionals and local 

individuals, a prudent combination of 

experience and familiarity. 

Addressing the right 
segment 
  Au Housing focused on un-served 

or underserved rural and semi-urban 

customers (over 82 percent of its 

customers). 

  Au Housing addresses the housing needs 

of low-income groups, self-employed 

individuals and salaried individuals in these 

regions. 

  The Company addresses first-time 

customers who find it difficult to access 

organised funds; over 58 percent of the 

loans were disbursed to self-employed 

individuals in 2013-14. 

Maintaining the right 
portfolio quality
  Au Housing provides small ticket housing 

loans to rural customers. Nearly 75 percent 

of the loans disbursed were less than H10 

lac (average loan size H6.74 lac). 

  Au Housing maintains a moderate loan-

to-value ratio with a security cover higher 

than the industry standard. The average LTV 

for the portfolio stood at 41.34 percent.

  Au Housing maintained a low income-to-

EMI ratio with an adequate cushion. Over 

68.17 percent of the Company’s portfolio 

had an income-to-EMI ratio of less than 40 

percent. 

With the right back 
end support
  Au Housing conducts a triple-level 

customer-visit matrix to ensure that the 

customer is capable of timely repayment. 

  Au Housing conducts a double-

verification of the property through 

its internal team, external consultants, 

empanelled lawyers and in-house legal staff.

  Au Housing decentralised its operations 

to accelerate loan sanction and disbursal. 

Au Housing disburses over 400 loans per 

month with an average turnaround time 

(loan origination to sanction) of just  

seven days. 

  Au Housing invested in the right systems 

and processes to standardise procedures 

across all branches.  

The Company 
addresses first-
time customers 
who find it 
difficult to access 
organised funds; 
over 58 percent 
of the loans 
were disbursed 
to self-employed 
individuals in 
2013-14. 

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED    
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funding.

Over the last year, the Company 

strengthened its access to loan capital 

through the following initiatives: 

  The Company diversified its capital 

access not only from banks but also from 

financial institutions, debt capital markets 

and the National Housing Bank. 

  The Company grew the number of 

bankers from nine in 2012-13 to 15 

(including private and PSUs banks) during 

the year under review.

  The Company accessed its first refinance 

line of H25 crore from the National 

Housing Bank. The Company availed the 

refinance facility under a popular scheme 

- the ‘Golden Jubilee Rural Housing 

Refinance Scheme - to lend retail home 

loan assets in rural areas with ticket sizes 

below H15 lac. The Golden Jubilee Rural 

Housing Refinance Scheme addressed the 

inequities of rural housing by providing 

improved access to housing credit, thereby 

enabling an individual to build a new 

house or improve/add to his old rural 

dwelling.

  The Company mobilised Tier-II capital 

from ICICI Bank in only its second year, a 

benchmark which normally takes longer 

for start-up companies to achieve.

  The Company entered the debt market, 

mobilising proceeds through commercial 

papers.

The result: a stronger funding pipeline 

enhanced disbursements by 51.35 percent  

- from H184.43 crore in 2012-13 to 

H279.94 crore in 2013-14.  

The first few years are always challenging 
for any housing finance company, strapped 
for funds, customers and branches leading to 
inadequate procedural maturity. 

Au Housing is a rare housing finance entity that 
has circumvented these challenges related to 
its capital appetite.  

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED    



Competitiveness. 
The first few years are usually challenging 
for any housing finance company as it works 
hard to create a Balance Sheet that can inspire 
credibility and can make it possible to mobilise 
competitively-priced funds. 

Au Housing is the unusual instance of a housing 
finance entity that was able to successfully 
moderate its fund costs in only the second year 
of its existence. 

The Company achieved this through the 

following initiatives:

  The Company leveraged its priority 

sector status (more than 90 percent 

of the portfolio qualified for the rural 

housing criterion) to mobilise NHB funds 

which were 200 bps lower than the other 

borrowing rates. 

  An external credit rating agency CRISIL 

upgraded the credit rating of the Company 

BBB+/stable to A-/stable for long-term 

loans and A2+ to A1 for short-term 

loans - similar to the rating enjoyed by its 

18 year old parent company. The rating 

upgrade was a foregone conclusion thanks 

to the steady increase in Au Housing’s 

scale of operations over the past two years, 

its healthy profitability despite being in 

the start-up stage of operations, adequate 

capitalisation, support from its parent 

company, dedicated senior management 

team, strong asset quality and rigorous 

underwriting standards. 

  The Company mobilised Tier-II capital, 

which helped improve capital adequacy 

to 31.21 percent, far higher than the 

regulatory requirement of 12 percent, 

translating into a lower cost of funds.  

The result: Within just two years of getting 

into business, Au Housing moderated 

its fresh borrowings cost by 100 bps 

compared to the previous year, vindicating 

the viability of its business model even in a 

challenging environment.  
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Systems.

The Company achieved this through the 

following initiatives:

  The Company invested proactively 

in technology, convinced that the 

advantages derived from this would 

enhance operational consistency and cost-

effectiveness. 

  The Company established a cutting-

edge IT-enabled platform to engage in 

multiple functions - from lead generation 

to account closure. 

  The Company selectively recruited 

successful professionals with at least 

10 years of experience from within the 

housing finance industry, shrinking the 

organisational learning curve. 

  The Company identified various industry 

risks, which were progressively mitigated 

through better procedural discipline. 

  The Company addressed the niche 

nature of its business through a localised 

and customised approach. 

The result: The Company achieved a 

turnaround time (loan origination to 

sanction) of seven days and expects to 

moderate this to three days over the 

foreseeable future. 

The first few years are usually difficult 
for any housing finance brand as it takes 
painstakingly long to evolve dependable 
processes leading to multi-locational 
consistency. 

Au Housing is the differentiated instance of 
a housing finance entity that has ushered in 
procedural maturity as early as in only the 
second year of its existence.

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED    



Quality.
The first few years are usually challenging 
for any housing finance company as it needs to 
balance the needs of growth on the one hand 
with the need of protecting loan quality on 
the other. 

Au Housing is the rare instance of a housing 
finance entity, which in just the second year 
of its existence that has reported growth 
(while addressing the needs of first-time 
rural customers with no corresponding 
documentation support) without compromising 
the strength of its loan book. 

The Company achieved this through the 

following initiatives:

  The Company selected to finance small 

customers, which relatively insulated it 

from the risk of default; the Company’s 

ticket size of H6.74 lac per transaction 

was considerably lower than the industry 

average of around H12 lac. 

  The Company maintained a low income-

to-installment ratio, adequately de-risking 

the business while providing customers 

with a comfortable loan repayment 

schedule.

The result: Au Housing doubled its book 

over the last year profits trebled; the 

Company maintained non-performing 

assets below 0.20 percent arising out 

of strong credit filters; a three-stage 

check strengthened the appraisal process 

across 35 locations without reducing 

disbursement speed in any way.  
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Sushil Kumar Agarwal, Whole-Time 
Director and CEO, reviews the 
Company’s performance in 2013-14 

“We are 
optimistic of  
high year-on-
year growth…”

	W ere you pleased 

with the performance 

of the Company in 

2013-14?

	 Au Housing 

performed creditably to 

double the assets under 

management and report 

an ROE of 17 percent in 

only its second year of 

operations. Generally such 

a performance would have been reported by housing 

companies only after a few years of having achieved 

systemic maturity; in our case, we were pleased to report 

such a performance early in our existence, indicating 

that we have successfully shrunk our learning curve and 

leveraged all available resources to report a creditable 

performance. 

	Wha t were some of the reasons behind 

the Company being able to report such a 

performance?

	 There are some pertinent reasons why the Company 

was successful in reducing its learning curve. First, Au 

Housing received credible brand support from its parent 

Au Financiers, which immediately enhanced our market 

acceptability. Second, we recruited better especially at the 

senior managerial level, attracting individuals with extensive 

industry knowledge. Third, we allocated separate functions 

which were overseen by respective managers, ensuring 

that responsibility and authority were efficiently delegated 

across the organisation. 

	Wha t was the geographic focus of the 

Company?

	 The Company built on the rich rural experience of 

its parent company. Over the years, we recognised that 

most Indian housing finance companies selected to grow 

their presence in urban locations (metropolitan, Tier-I and 

Tier-II). At Au Housing, we recognised that one customer 

profile had been largely overlooked for years – someone 

dwelling in rural or semi-urban India. This customer was 

ready to buy a home but surprisingly there was no one to 

offer a corresponding mortgage. Au Housing addressed 

this unmet need; the result is that a significant proportion 

of the Company’s income during the year under review 

was derived from non-urban locations. The fact that the 

Company reported a 281 percent increase in profit after 

tax and a 114 percent increase in the number of customers 

validates its rural geographic focus. 

	Wha t was critical to this deepening 

geographic focus?

	 When a corporate selects to expand in rural India, 

it faces a number of challenges: one, because most 

customers fall under the un-banked category, there is 

always the challenge of their inability to produce the 

necessary documentation.  Two, since most of the 

branches are rural there is always a time-lag in getting the 

corresponding clearances from the head office. Three, there 

Q

Q

Q

A

A
A

Q

A
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is a need for systemic consistency between one branch and 

the other in line with the corporate objectives. If we had 

chosen to expand with speed without any corresponding 

respect for processes and systems, we might have reported 

attractive numbers for the moment but gradually the 

quality of  our book would have been adversely affected. 

So what we achieved during the financial year under review 

was the result of our ability to strike an adequate balance 

between the quantum of business on the one hand and the 

projected quality of our book on the other. I am confident 

that we have grown our business (disbursements worth 

H184.43 crore in 2012-13 to H279.94 crore in 2013-14) 

without compromising our book quality in any way. Our 

systemic maturity was validated by the fact that we received 

NHB funding worth H250 million.

	 How important was this funding to Au 

Housing? 

	 Au Housing is at that time in its existence when it 

needs two things from the supply side: a funds pipeline 

from a large financial institution, which can ensure that 

its financing capability will always be compatible with the 

strength of its brand; it also needs access to low-cost funds, 

which can kickstart a virtuous cycle marked by a growth 

in revenues, margins and profits. This is precisely the 

advantage that Au Housing will now be able to capitalise 

on: the NHB is a H34,604 crore home financing institution, 

which finances credible home financing companies with 

the objective of widening the market. Resultantly, the 

NHB provided Au Housing with an adequate repository of 

low-cost funds, strengthening our viability and enabling 

us to grow our book. We hope that in the long run this 

will qualify us for more NHB financing at attractive terms 

and strengthen the virtuous cycle further. It is important to 

remember that the NHB does not finance home mortgage 

companies in the first three years of their existence; the 

fact that NHB financed Au Housing in only the Company’s 

second year is a rare instance that only stands to validate 

our pedigree, presence and processes. 

		Wha t is the Company’s agenda for 2014-15?
	 The market potential for home mortgages in rural India 

is immense. During the current financial year, we expect 

to focus on the potential coming out of rural Rajasthan. 

We expect to intensify our presence across rural Rajasthan 

(more branches), strengthen our brand and capture upticks 

in mortgage requirements. We have strengthened our 

systems and processes to the point that we believe that 

this is scalable; we expect to grow our business 100% y-o-y 

without a corresponding increase in our overheads. This 

should enable us to moderate our operating expenses from 

4 percent of revenues to 2 percent (industry standard). I 

can confidently state that few companies (if at all) would 

be able to moderate their overheads down to the industry 

standard in as short a tenure as we are likely to achieve 

over the next few years. 

	Wha t is the basis of your sectoral optimism?

	 India’s housing finance industry addresses the second 

largest population cluster in the world and at the same 

time is one of the most underpenetrated markets. The 

shortage in this sector is estimated at 63 million units; 

a significant part of this under-penetration is rural. Not 

surprisingly, the mortgage-to-GDP ratio in India is not even 

15 percent as against 75 percent in a number of developed 

countries. The silver lining here can be drawn from the 

extrapolation that the H800,000 crore mortgage market 

could quintuple if the country’s mortgage-to-GDP ratio 

merely doubles to 30 percent. 

There is another reason why I am optimistic about this 

being a sector with potential. Over the last few decades, 

there was a resistance to taking loans largely because 

the sources of funds were unorganised and exploitative. 

However, there has been a sea change in the last three 

decades; rates have become stable, tenures have become 

flexible and the rising incidence of family nuclearisation/

higher disposable incomes is widening the market for 

mortgage-backed loans faster than before.

Moreover, with growing demand, this segment is 

considered to be one of the most secure. In a scenario 

where defaults are rising across all assets classes, the 

housing sector has reported a lower NPA largely owing to 

a sentimental value attached to homes and HFC’s access to 

tools like CIBIL and SARFESI, which have helped build  

asset quality.

Lastly, I would like to thank all our stakeholders who have 

extended their support to the Company.

Q

Q

A

A

Q
A
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Presence
With 35 branches, Au Housing has 

over time established its footprint in 

the housing finance market across 

Rajasthan, Gujarat, Maharashtra, 

Madhya Pradesh, Delhi and Haryana.  

Asset quality
The Company possesses all-embracing 

legal and commercial insights on 

one hand and strong credit appraisal 

competencies on the other, helping 

strengthen asset quality.   

Customised 
The Company’s ability to customise 

its product portfolio according to the 

needs of the customers has been vital 

to Au Housing’s success. 

Intellectual capital
With a team size of 352 members, the 

senior members possess an average 

experience of 15 years in the industry. 

The Company has strong credit risk, 

treasury and finance teams catalysing 

the Company’s growth.

Operational simplicity
The Company believes in working its way 

up from the grassroots - by engaging 

in the conventional financing business 

with novel skills, thereby maintaining 

operational simplicity while  

understanding the customer’s  

psychology. 

Strategic
The Company’s strategy is to view 

its business holistically. It aims to 

strike a balance between targets and 

capabilities by allocating employees in 

line economic conditions.

Robust technology
The Company invested in a robust 

technology platform to reach an end-

to-end turnaround time (TAT) of seven 

days, reflecting its high degree of 

responsiveness.

our core 
competencies
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Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the 
risk that a borrower will 
default on any type of debt 
by failing to make required 
payments. The risk is 
primarily that of the lender 
and includes lost principal 
and interest, disruption in 
cash flows, and increased 
collection costs. 

Risk mitigation

  Risk-based pricing methods are used to manage the credit risk where relevant quantitative 
and qualitative information are processed to ascertain the creditworthiness of the borrower. 

  For informed decision-making, customer profiling and analysis of his/her ongoing portfolio 
is done.

  At the transactional level, credit risks are managed by using the services of in-house 
professionals.

  All credit exposure limits are approved as per the credit approval matrix.

  The Company’s loan-to-value ratios limits have been formulated with the objective to 
manage collateral risk better.

Liquidity and 
financing risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that 
a given security or asset 
cannot be traded quickly 
enough in the market to 
prevent a loss (or make the 
required profit) costs. 

Risk mitigation
  Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO), an executive-level committee comprising 

senior officials, periodically reviews treasury operations. 

  The ALCO, functioning under the supervision of the Board of Directors, lays down 
procedures that involve the assessment of various types of risks and shifts in assets and 
liabilities to manage such risks.

  The Company borrows from 15 banks to reduce its dependence on a single lender. 

  During the year, Au Housing also diversified its sourcing of low-cost funds from the NHB, 
debt capital markets and Tier-II capital.

  To mitigate asset-liability mismatch, the Company focuses on matching the tenure of 
receivables and liabilities payable. As a contingency plan, the Company maintains a sufficient 
quantity of credit to manage anytime liquidity.

Operational risk
Operational risk is the 
risk of loss resulting from 
inadequate or failed 
processes, people and 
systems, or from external 
events.

Risk mitigation
  The Company invested in robust technology, which addresses systems and procedures 

carried out by the Company in its financing operations. 

  The Company developed policies and processes removing dependency on an individual. 
Almost all the processes are under maker and author concept reducing the  possibility of 
error and risk.

  A comprehensive system of internal controls, efficient allocation of duties, use of advance 
software, and detailed standard operating procedures have helped the Company smoothly 
deal with the risk.

De-risking the business 
Every corporate is under threat from unforeseen contingencies that can hamper prospects. At Au 

Housing, we understand the impact of industrial uncertainties and their possible outcomes. We 

leverage this knowledge to undertake counter-measures that strengthen our viability across verticals, 

products, geographies and market cycles. A combination of centrally-issued policies and divisionally-

evolved procedures brings robustness to the process, ensuring that all risks are effectively addressed.
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Mr. Sanjay Agarwal,  
Managing Director
Mr. Sanjay Agarwal is a rank holding 
Chartered Accountant and a first generation 
entrepreneur. He possesses vast experience 
spanning more than 18 years in the field 
of financial, legal and credit risk analysis 
& management, strategic planning and is 
responsible for the overall management 

of the Company. He is also the Managing 
Director of Au Financiers (India) Limited 

His area of specialisation encompasses 
strategic planning, business model, HR and 
relationship management. 

His vision, strategic focus and 
entrepreneurial skills continue to guide the 
Company’s businesses across demanding 
markets and competitive scenarios. 

Mr. Uttam Tibrewal,  
Director
Mr. Tibrewal is a commerce graduate from 
Delhi University who joined the Au Group 
in 2003. He has an extensive experience 
of more than 16 years in the area of retail 
marketing and business development, 

strategic market analysis, delivery and service 
quality, customer relationships and strategic 
relationship.

He is also experienced in the areas of 
operations, sales, marketing and promotions 
targeted towards rural and suburban 
consumers.

Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal, 
Whole Time Director and CEO
Mr. Agarwal is a qualified Chartered 
Accountant and Company Secretary 
with more than 14 years of professional 
experience in the SME, housing finance and 
financial services sectors. He has previously 

worked as a National Head – Credit Risk for 
the Business Banking Group (SME) of ICICI 
Bank limited. 

He is experienced in areas like retail 
finance, business development, financial 
management, administration and 
manpower management. 

Profile of Board of Directors

Mr. Ghanshyam Rawat, 
Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Rawat is a Chartered Accountant 
who possesses 21 years of rich experience 
in treasury operations, corporate 
finance, accounts, forex and interest risk 
management, mergers and acquisitions, 

finalisation of accounts and IFRS & SAP 
systems. Before joining Au Housing, he 
served at renowned organisations like 
Deutche Postbank Home Finance Ltd., 
Accenture India Pvt. Ltd. and Indo Rama 
Synthetic (India) Ltd. in key positions.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Directors’ Report

To

The Shareholders

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Your Directors are pleased to present the Fourth Annual Report of your company together with the Audited Statement of 

Accounts and the Auditor’s Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2014. The summarized financial results for the year 

ended as at 31st March, 2014 are as under:

The Company’s interest and other income increased to H56.55 crore in FY ended March 31, 2014 from H17.59 crore in previous 

FY ended March 31, 2013.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
H in crore

Particulars 2013-14 2012-13

Total Income 56.55 17.59

Less: Total Expenditure before Depreciation  & Amortization 46.75 14.78

Less: Depreciation & Amortization 0.41 0.07

Total Expenses 47.16 14.85

Profit Before Tax 9.39 2.74

Less: Provision for Taxations 2.20 0.85

Profit After Tax 7.19 1.89

Transfer to Statutory Reserve 1.96 0.67
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Au Housing Finance Limited (“Company” or “AUHFL”), is 

a wholly owned subsidiary of Au Financiers (India) Limited 

(“AUFIN”), and is registered with National Housing Bank 

(“NHB”) to carry on housing finance activities.

During the year under review, the Company sanctioned housing 

loans for H295.12 crore as compared to H194.68 crore in the 

preceding Financial Year 2012-2013 and disbursed housing 

loans for H279.94 crore as compared to H184.43 crore in the 

preceding Financial Year 2012-2013. 

Operating Cost increased by 86.18% to H2.83 crore, from H1.52 

crore, in the preceding Financial Year 2012-2013. Manpower 

expenses for the year were H12.74 crore as against H5.32 crore 

in the preceding Financial Year 2012-2013, an increase of 

139.47%.

The cumulative provisioning on the asset book as on March 31, 

2014 was H1.78 crore, of which standard asset provisioning 

amounted to H1.64 crore.

The provision for taxation during the year was H2.20 crore.

The net profit after tax for the year increased by 281%, from 

H1.89 crore, in the previous Financial Year to H7.19 crore in the 

current financial year.

The average size of home loans disbursed to individuals during 

the year was H6.74 Lac and Average tenure is 120 Months.                                                                                                                                     

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, based on the approval granted by 

the Shareholders at the Extra Ordinary Annual General Meeting 

of the Company held on March 18, 2014, the Authorised Share 

Capital of the Company was increased from H27.25 crore to 

H30 crore.

The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 

2014 was H29.92 crore (March 31, 2013: H27.25 crore) 

consisting of 2,99,16,667 Equity Shares of H10/- each.

During the year under review, the Company has issued and 

allotted 26,66,667 Equity Shares of H10/- each at a premium 

of H65/- each aggregating H20,00,00,025/- to AUFIN as Further 

Issue of shares.

BRANCH EXPANSION
Your Company has been successful in establishing its presence 

leveraging the branch network of its parent Company, AUFIN 

specially to provide affordable services for rural households.

During the year under review, operations were strengthened in 

the states of Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, 

Haryana and Delhi.

The Company has expanded its branch network from 25 

branches as of 31st March, 2013 to 35 branches as of 31st 

March, 2014 and plans to scale up its operation to newer 

geographies in FY2014-15.

The Company has its registered office in Rajasthan and is having 

35 branches as on 31st March, 2014 and branch network as 

mentioned below:

State No. of Branches

Rajasthan 18

Gujarat 5

Maharashtra 6

Madhya Pradesh 4

Haryana 1

Delhi 1
Total No. Of Branches 35
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
A detailed business review is appended in the Management 

Discussion and Analysis Section of Annual Report.

RESOURCE MOBILISATION
Your Company takes every effort to tap the appropriate source 

of funding to minimize the weighted average cost of funds. 

During the year under review, the Company met its funding 

requirements through a combination of short term debt 

(comprising Commercial Paper and Bank Loans) and long term 

debt (Bank Term Loans, NHB Refinance and Subordinate Debt).

Long Term Debts 

A. Term Loans:
Your Company has borrowed fresh long term loans of H180 

crore from leading public and private sector banks during the 

current financial year as compared to H124 crore during the 

previous financial year. The aggregate of these term loans 

outstanding at the end of the Current financial year stood at 

H271.21 crore as against Rs.123.50 crore as at the end of the 

previous financial year.

B. Refinance from National Housing Bank:
During the year under review, your Company has availed the 

first sanction of Refinance Assistance from National Housing 

Bank (NHB) of H25.00 crore. The company availed this fund 

under the Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Refinance Scheme of 

the Government of India which will be repayable within 10 

years and outstanding at the end of the current year stood at 

H24.49 crore.

The company disbursed H25 crore in respect of 358 dwelling 

units during the year under the Golden Jubilee Rural Housing 

Finance Scheme.

C. Subordinate Debt (Unsecured Loan):
During the year under review, your Company has also got the 

first sanction of Subordinate Term Loan from ICICI Bank of 

H15.00 crore.

Short Term Debts

A. Cash Credit Facility:
During the year under review, your Company has availed 

additional cash credit limits of Rs 13.00 Crore from banking 

system as against the previous limits of H12.00 crore. The 

aggregate cash credit limits available with the company at the 

end of the financial year stood at Rs 25.00 Crore against the 

previous year limits of Rs 12.00 Crore only. 

B. Commercial Paper:
During the year 2013-14, your Company has raised resources 

by issuing Commercial Paper to the extent of Rs.8.75 crore.

The outstanding Commercial Paper as on 31st March, 2014 is 

H8.75 crore (Gross).

The Debt Equity ratio of the Company as on 31st March, 2014 

was 6.38 times.

The Company has been regular in repayment of its borrowings 

and payment of interest.

Credit Risk Guarantee Fund Scheme for Low 
Income Housing” (CRGFSLIH)
The Government of India has launched the Credit Risk Guarantee 

Fund Scheme for Low Income Housing” (CRGFSLIH). AUHFL has 

signed the Undertaking with the Credit Risk Guarantee Fund 

Trust (CRGFT) under NHB  to avail the benefit of the Guarantee 

Fund in future

UPGRADED IN EXTERNAL CREDIT RATING
During the year under review, India’s leading Rating Agency 

CRISIL has upgraded company’s Long Term Rating to “CRISIL 

A-/Stable” for Secured NCDs, Subordinated Debt and Long 

Term Bank facilities and short term rating to “CRISIL A1” for 

Short Term Debt (including Commercial Paper).

NON-PERFMORMING ASSETS 
A pro-active collection and recovery management system at 

ground level of your company was able to contain its gross Non 

Performing Assets at H0.89 crore (0.22% of the portfolio) as on 

March 31, 2014. The company reviews the delinquency and 

loan portfolio on regular basis.

During the year under review, the Company has, as per the 

guidelines issued by the National Housing Bank made a 

provision of H0.99 crore towards NPA and Standard Assets. The 

cumulative risk provisions under NHB Directions as on March 

31, 2014 stood at H1.77 crore. 

DIRECTORS
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal, Managing Director (DIN No.00009526)
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of your Company retire by rotation and being eligible; offer 

themselves for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. Necessary resolutions for the re- appointment of the 

aforesaid Director have been included in the notice convening 

the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Considering the size and operations of the Company, Mr. 

Sanjay Agarwal was appointed as the Managing Director of the 

company in the duly conveyed Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

(EOGM) of members held on Monday, 23rd December, 2013 

for a period of 3 (Three) years w.e.f. 1st January, 2014

DIVIDEND
In view of business expansion plans and deployment of earnings 

in the business, your Directors feels prudent to plough back 

the profits for the future growth of the company and do not 

recommend any dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2014.

REGULATORY & STATUTORY COMPLIANCES
Your Company has complied with the applicable statutory 

provisions, including those of the Companies Act, 1956, and 

the Income-tax Act, 1961. Further, The Company has complied 

with the applicable provisions of the National Housing Bank 

Act, 1987, the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 

2010 and other applicable regulations issued by National 

Housing Bank (NHB) from time to time, on asset classification 

of credit/investments, credit rating, Fair Practices Code, Know 

Your Customer (KYC), Anti Money Laundering Guidelines, 

income recognition and provisioning for non-performing loans, 

as applicable to a Housing Finance Company (‘HFC’).

During the year under review, NHB has conducted an inspection 

of the company under section 34 of the NHB act, 1987 and 

company has furnished the replies to the same.

The National Housing Bank Act, 1987, empowers NHB to levy 

a penalty on Housing Finance Companies for contravention of 

the Act or any of its provisions. NHB has not levied any penalty 

on AUFHL during the year.

The Government of India has set up the Central Registry of 

Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of 

India (CERSAI) under section 21 of the SARFAESI Act, 2002 to 

have a central database of all mortgages created by lending 

institutions. AUHFL has not been under the ambit to upload the 

data with CERSAI, but as proactively and voluntary we upload 

the data with CERSAI portal.      

The object of this registry is to compile and maintain data 

relating to all transactions secured by mortgages. Accordingly, 

AUHFL is registered with CERSAI and has been submitting data 

in respect of its loans.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO
Consequent to the increase in the net worth, your Company 

maintained a CRAR of 31.21 % as on 31st March 2014 against 

a minimum 12.00 % as per regulatory requirements specified 

by the National Housing Bank (NHB).

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Your Company is moving towards “Central Data Base” platform 

i.e. “core housing finance solutions” which is a step towards 

aligning technology to the projected business growth. All our 

operations (Branches and Corporate office) are operational 

on “central data base platform”. The steps taken to upgrade 

Information Technology platform will facilitate your Company 

to serve the customer(s) in an efficient manner and which is an 

integral part of the control mechanism.

DEPOSITS
During the period under review, your Company has not 

accepted/renewed any deposits within the meaning of Section 

58A of the Companies Act, 1956, and the rules there under.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
Company has set up policy framework for ensuring better 

management of its asset & liability profile. AUHFL has given 

due importance to prudent lending practices and put in place 

suitable measures for risk mitigation, which include, verification 

of credit history from credit information bureaus, personal 

verification of customer’s business and residence, in house 

technical and legal verification, conservative loan to value, and 

compulsory term cover for insurance.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
In view of the nature of activities being carried out by the 

company, Rules 2A and 2B of The Companies (Disclosure of 

Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 

concerning conservation of energy and technology absorption 

respectively are not applicable to the company.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Further, Company does not have any Foreign Exchange Earnings 

and there was no outgo during the financial year ended 31st 

March 2014.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT
The Company had 352 permanent employees on its rolls as 

at March 31, 2014. The Company recognizes the value of its 

human capital and is continuously upgrading the skill levels of 

its workforce through regular internal and external training and 

management development programmes.

In pursuance of the Company’s commitment to develop 

and retain the best available talent, the Company had been 

sponsoring the employees for training programmes organized 

by reputed professional institutions and training programmes 

conducted by National Housing Bank for upgrading the skill 

and knowledge of the employees in different operational areas

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
During the year, there was no employee who was drawing 

remuneration as laid down by the provisions of Section 217 (2A) 

of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Particulars 

of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended, the name and therefore 

the requirement of furnishing the details pursuant to the same 

does not arise. 

INSURANCE PROTECTION TO BORROWERS
Your Company has tied up with Kotak Mahindra Old Mutual 

Life Insurance Limited and HDFC Standard Life Insurance 

Company Limited for providing property insurance of the 

property mortgaged.

AUDITORS
M/s S.R.B.C & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company will retire at the conclusion of the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer 

themselves for reappointment. They have confirmed that their 

re-appointment, if made, would be in conformity with the limit 

of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. The necessary 

eligibility certificate prescribed under the said Section has been 

received from them. 

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors recommend their 

reappointment as the Statutory Auditors of the Company. The 

shareholders will be required to elect Auditors for the current 

year and fix their remuneration.

AUDITOR’S REPORT
The observation of the auditors in their report are self 

explanatory and therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, do 

not call for further comments.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the 

Board of Directors of the company confirms that:-

(i)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(ii)	 we have selected such accounting policies and applied 
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 
2014 and of the profit of the Company for that period;

(iii)	we have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities; and

(iv)	We have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern 

basis.
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The Directors would like to place on record their gratitude for 

the valuable guidance and support received from the National 

Housing Bank and convey their appreciation to AUFIL, the 

holding company, the Company’s Bankers, lenders, and all 

other business associates for the continuous support given by 

them to the Company. Your Directors also wish to place on 

record their appreciation for the commitment displayed by all 

the executives, officers, staff and the Senior Management team, 

in performance of the Company during the year.

	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

	 Au Housing Finance Limited 

Sanjay Agarwal	 Sushil Kumar Agarwal

Managing Director	 Whole Time Director 

Date: May 23, 2014

Place: Jaipur 

CIN No.U65922RJ2011PLC034297
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Name of Director Director Identification 
Number

Number of Other 
Directorship held  
(in public companies)

Qualification/Experience

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal 00009526 2 FCA, B.Com / 18 Years

Mr. Uttam Tibrewal 01024940 2 B. Com / 17 Years

Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal 03154532 0 C.A and C.S / 14 Years

Report on 
Corporate Governance 

“Corporate governance” has come to denote a set of standards, 

systems, and practices that seek to ensure, not merely efficiency 

in corporate management, but also integrity, accountability 

and transparency in the Company’s operations and dealings 

with its stakeholders and others, and statutory and regulatory 

compliance. 

Companies with listed shares are mandated to follow a statutory 

and regulatory code of corporate governance, and are required 

to append to their annual financial statements, a report on their 

corporate-governance policies and practices. Having not listed 

its shares , our Company does not fall within the statutory and 

regulatory prescription. However, it has voluntarily adopted 

relevant provisions of the code in line with its own emphasis on 

following sound corporate-governance and financial-disclosure 

policies and practices. Incorporated as a subsidiary of Au 

Financiers (India) Limited, the Company has, all along, imbibed 

the Au Financiers Group’s core values stressing ethical business 

practices with transparency and accountability, dedicated 

customer service, and efficient and prudent financial policies. 

Corporate Governance is a voluntary, self–disciplining code, 

which means not only ensuring compliance with regulatory 

requirement but by also being responsive and accountable to 

its shareholders, customers, all other stakeholders and society 

at large. The Directors fully endorse and support the essentials 

of Corporate Governance as matter of good governance 

hereby we are attaching a report on Corporate Governance on 

voluntary basis.

BOARD OF DIRETORS

Composition of Board
Au Housing believes that the board of the company is the 

core of its corporate governance practice, as it oversees the 

managements functioning and acts in long terms interest of all 

the stakeholders of the company.

During the year, Mr. Sanjay Agarwal-Director, has been 

appointed as the Managing Director of the company in the duly 

conveyed Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) of members 

held on Monday, 23rd December, 2013 for a period of 3 

(Three) years w.e.f. 1st January, 2014 and may be re-appointed, 

if eligible.

No Director is related to any other Director.

As on March 31, 2014, the strength of the board is three 

members. All the Directors have rich experience of managing 

operations of financing business and have expertise in crafting 

strategies for business development. List of directors with 

directorships held by them in other Public companies as on 31st 

March 2014 are given below.
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All the Directors make the necessary annual disclosure regarding 

their directorships and Committee positions and intimate the 

changes to the Company as and when they take place.

Board Meetings
Board meetings are normally held in Jaipur. The Board meets 

at least once a quarter, and more frequently as necessary to 

consider among other businesses, quarterly performance of 

the Company and financial results. To enable the Board to 

discharge its responsibilities effectively and take informed 

decisions, necessary information is made available to the Board. 

The Directors are informed of the main items on the agenda for 

every Board meeting along with the notice. Detailed agenda 

notes are sent to them in advance of the meetings

The Board met Four (4) times during the financial year 2013-

2014, as below

1.	 30th Apr 2013
2.	 26th Aug 2013
3.	 29th Nov 2013, and 
4.	 15th Feb 2014

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Company has constituted a set of qualified and focused 

committees of the Board constituting Directors of the Company 

and expert senior management personnel to support the board 

in discharging its responsibilities. These Board Committees have 

specific terms of reference/scope to focus effectively on the 

issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters. The 

Committees operate as empowered agents of the Board as per 

their terms of reference.

Au Housing at present has four committees of the Board as 

below:  
1.	 Audit Committee
2.	 Nomination & Remuneration Committee
3.	 Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and 
4.	 Executive Committee 

Audit Committee 
The Company has an Audit Committee of the Board of Director 

of the company, as below

The Committee comprises of Mr. Sanjay Agarwal, Mr. Sushil 

Kumar Agarwal and Mr. Uttam Tibrewal. The Company 

Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

All members of the Committee have wide exposure and possess 

sound knowledge in the area of accounts, finance, audit, 

internal controls, etc. 

During the financial year 2013-2014, 4 (Four) Audit Committee 

meetings were held on the following dates:
1.	 30th May, 2013
2.	 24th Aug, 2013
3.	 29th Nov, 2013 and
4.	 15th Feb, 2014

 The names and categories of the Directors, their attendance at Board meetings as on 31st March 2014 and at the AGM held on 

26th Aug, 2013 are given below.

Name of Directors Category of Director No. of Meetings 
Held

No. of Meetings 
Present

Attendance at the  
last AGM held on 
26th  Aug, 2013

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Managing Director 4 4 Yes

Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal Whole Time 
Director & CEO

4 4 Yes

Mr. Uttam Tibrewal Director 4 4 Yes
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The gap between two Meetings did not exceed four months

Members Designation No. of meeting 
attended

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Managing Director 4

Mr. Sushil Kumar 
Agarwal

Whole Time 
Director & CEO

4

Mr. Uttam Tibrewal Director 4

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
Asset Liability Management Committee of the Board comprised 

five members, Viz. Mr. Sanjay Agarwal- Managing Director, 

Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal- Whole Time Director, Mr. Uttam 

Tibrewal- Director, Mr. Ghanshyam Rawat- Chief Financial 

Officer and Mr. Ashutosh Atre- National Credit Manager of the 

company 

Functioning under the supervision of the Board of Directors, 

ALCO lays down policies and quantitative limits relating to 

assets and liabilities, based on an assessment of the various risks 

involved in managing them.

The ALCO met Four times during the year.

The Company has an ALCO Committee of the senior 

management executives of the company, as below:

Members Designation No. of meeting 
attended

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Managing Director 4

Mr. Sushil Kumar 
Agarwal

Whole Time 
Director & CEO

4

Mr. Uttam Tibrewal Director 4

Mr. Ghanshyam 
Rawat 

Chief Financial 
Officer  

2

Mr. Ashutosh Atre 
(appointed on 23rd 
May, 2014)

National Credit 
Manager

0

(*reconstituted by the Board on the board meeting held on 

23rd May, 2014)

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The role of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is 

to review market practices and to decide on remuneration 

packages applicable to the Managing Director and the Executive 

Director & CFO. 

Meetings Held During the financial year 2013-2014, 4 (Four) 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee meetings were held 

on the following dates:
1.	 29th May, 2013
2.	 24th Aug, 2013
3.	 12th Nov, 2013 and
4.	 15th Feb, 2014

Executive Committee  
The Board of director has constituted the Executive Committee 

consisted of three Members viz., Mr. Sanjay Agarwal, Mr. Sushil 

Kumar Agarwal and Mr. Ghanshyam Rawat for delegation of 

Borrowing powers of Board to Executive Committee to enable 

quick decision making.

The Company Secretary serves as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee approves loans, borrowings, and investments 

within limits specified by the Board. Besides, the Committee 

reviews the conduct of business and operations, considers new 

products and parameters and suggests business reorientation

During the financial year 2013-2014, 5 (Five) Executive 

Committee meetings were held on the following dates:
1.	 18th July , 2013
2.	 31st July, 2013
3.	 06th Dec, 2013
4.	 29th Jan, 2014 and
5.	 31st Mar, 2014

Members Designation No. of meeting 
attended

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Managing Director 5

Mr. Sushil Kumar 
Agarwal

Whole Time 
Director & CEO

5

Mr. Ghanshyam 
Rawat

Chief Financial 
Officer

5
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Particulars of venue and date of the General Meetings held during the last financial year, and the details of business transect in the 

respective meetings are given below:

Financial Year Meeting Date Location Business

2013-14 EGM 22.04.2013 19A, Dhuleshwar Garden, Ajmer 
Road, Jaipur-302001

•	 To Appointment of Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal 
as Whole-Time Director of The Company

2013-14 AGM 26.08.2013 19A, Dhuleshwar Garden, Ajmer 
Road, Jaipur-302001

•	 To approve the Annual Accounts FY 12-13.
•	 To appoint M/s S. R. B. C & Co. LLP, as the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix 
their remuneration.

•	 To appoint a director in place of Mr. Uttam 
Tibrewal, Director, who retires by rotation 
and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

•	 To borrow money in excess of Paid up Capital 
and Free Reserve of the Company u/s 293(1)(d) 
and to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the 
Assets of the Company for such borrowings u/s 
293 (1)(a) of the Companies Act, 1956.

•	 To Approve the revision of remuneration of Mr. 
Sushil Kumar Agarwal, Whole Time Director

2013-14 EGM 23.12.2013 19A, Dhuleshwar Garden, Ajmer 
Road, Jaipur-302001

•	 To Appointment of Mr. Sanjay Agarwal as 
Managing Director of the Company

2013-14 EGM 18.03.2014 19A, Dhuleshwar Garden, Ajmer 
Road, Jaipur-302001

•	 To Increase in the Authorised Share Capital and 
consequent amendment to the MOA

•	 To Consideration and Approval for further issue 
Of Shares under Section 81(1a) of Company 
Act, 1956.

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Company Secretary 

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

19-A, Dhuleshwar Garden,

 Ajmer Road, Jaipur - 302001

Tel: +91-141- 6618839

Fax: +91-141-23688815

Email: sharad.pathak@aufin.in

CIN No.U65922RJ2011PLC034297

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Agarwal	 Sushil Kumar Agarwal 
Managing Director	 Whole Time Director 

Date: 23/05/2014
Place: Jaipur
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Management discussion 
and analysis
The Indian economy overview
For 2013-14, the economy grew 4.7%, pulled down by 

manufacturing, mining, construction and logistics. The 

performance for 2013-14 is a shade better than the 4.5% growth 

for 2012-13, a 10-year low. This is the second consecutive year 

that the economy has recorded sub-five percent growth. Indian 

economy faced challenges not only on account of low GDP but 

also sticky inflation, sluggish IIP and increasing current account 

deficit which impacted value of rupee during financial year 

2014-15.  

However, with the political stability industrial momentum could 

pick up in the second half of the year, as stalled investment 

would resume and consumer confidence increase.  India’s GDP 

growth rate has been higher than many peer country averages 

even during the slowdown of the last two years. 

Housing sector review: India’s total housing credit outstanding 

grew by 18% (annualised) in nine months for FY 2014, touching 

over Rs. 8,582 billion as on December 31, 2013.  In the first 

nine months of 2013-14, housing finance companies and 

NBFCs reported a higher 21% growth (annualised) compared 

with 17% (annualised) achieved by banks, reversing a trend 

witnessed until the first half of FY 2014. (Source: ICRA) 

Asset quality: The country’s housing finance companies 

protected their asset quality, which was reflected in a GNPA of 

0.84% on December 31, 2013, way below the corresponding 

NPA in India’s commercial banking sector. However, it is 

expected that the GNPA percentage in the non-housing loan 

segment may increase from around 1.2% in March 2013 to 

2-3% over the medium-term. This, along with some stress in 

the housing loan portfolio, could lead to an overall increase 

in the GNPA percentage from 0.84% as of December 2013 to 

0.9%-1.1% as on March 31, 2014 (Source: ICRA).

Low mortgage-to-GDP ratio: India’s housing mortgage 

market is under-penetrated, evidenced by a mortgage-to-

GDP ratio of 9%, when compared with over 50% in the 

developed economies and double-digit penetration in peer 

ASEAN countries. Despite mortgages comprising the largest 

component in banks retail portfolios and a gradual increase in 

the country’s mortgage-to-GDP ratio from 2% a decade ago, 

India is still considered relatively under-penetrated in the area 

of home loans disbursement.

Low mortgage penetration in India – a huge market potential
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Sectoral opportunities  
Changing demographics: An ongoing evolution in India’s 

demographics could create a larger housing finance market:  

* 	 A steady increase in the country’s youth population from 
430 million in 2011 to 464 million by 2021could make India 
the world’s youngest country (64 per cent of its population 
in the working age group with a national median age of 
29). Every third person in an Indian city today is young 
(Source: The Hindu).

*	 About a quarter of the global increase in the working age 
population (15-64) between 2010 and 2040 is likely to 
happen in India; during this period, the proportion of this 
segment is likely to rise by 500 bps to 69 percent of its 
population (Source: IMF).

* 	 A million Indians are projected to be employed every 
month, peaking at 653 million people in 2031. India’s 
demographic dividend has the potential to produce an 
additional 2 percent per capita GDP growth each year for 
the next twenty years (Source: IMF).

Improving economic scenario: There is a fundamental 

optimism when it comes to India’s economic growth:

* 	 India’s per capita income was projected to rise 10.4 per 
cent to Rs 74,920 in 2013-14 as the country emerged a 
$1.7 trillion economy (Source: ET).

* 	 India’s population is projected to rise to 1.6 billion by 2050 
from a prevailing 1.2 billion, making it the most populous 
country; China’s population is projected to remain 
unchanged at 1.3 billion during the period (Source: IBT).

*	 The proportion of working women in urban areas has 
increased from 11.9% in 2001 to 15.4% in 2011; this trend 
is likely to be reflected in rural India as well, strengthening 
family incomes. 

India’s rural story: Rural India is enhancing its role as an 

economic powerhouse:

*	 The hinterland, accounting for about 50 per cent of India’s 
gross domestic product (GDP) and 70 per cent of the 
country’s population, are reporting attractive growth. 

*	 Rural India (12 per cent of the world’s population) accounts 
for around 55 per cent of the country’s manufacturing GDP; 
nearly 75 per cent factories were built in rural India in the 
last decade; rural factories account for 70 per cent of all 
new manufacturing jobs. 

*	 Rural per capita consumption increased 19 per cent annually 
between 2009 and 2012, 200 bps higher than in urban 

India. During this period, incremental rural India spending 
increased by US$ 69 billion, significantly higher than US$ 
55 billion in urban India (Source: IBEF). 

Sectoral growth opportunities: There is optimism related to 

the growth of the housing finance segment in India:

* 	 Urban housing shortage touched 18.78 million units; 95% 
of the shortage was in economically weaker sections and 
the low income group (Source: Financial Express).

*	 Rural Housing shortage as per working group on rural 
housing of ministry of rural development is estimated at 
43.67 million housing units for the XII five year plan 2012-
2017 (Source : Ministry of Rural Development).

*	 Rural Housing Fund (RHF) was created by Union Government 
to increase refinance operation in rural housing sector.  In 
the union budget 2013-14, Rs. 6,000 has been allocated 
under RHF.

* 	 The government implemented various schemes to provide 
homes to the homeless and facilitating urban slum 
redevelopment (JNNURM). 

* 	 The Government of India has set up Credit Risk Guarantee 
Fund Trust (CRGFT) to offer credit guarantee cover to 
encourage credit in informal segment.

Our strengths
Experience: Au Financiers, the flagship company of the Au 

Group, has been engaged in the rural finance sector since 1996; 

its rich experience has translated into a deep understanding of 

under-served and un-served customers through the delivery of 

customised products. The Au Group enjoys near two-decade 

presence in Rajasthan’s interiors.

Under-served focus: In 2013-14, nearly 82 per cent of the 

Company’s loan book was derived from rural and semi-rural 

India. An average loan ticket size of Rs 6.40 lac indicated that 

the Company addressed the large lower end of the country’s 

economic pyramid, which is main inclusive growth agenda of 

Central Government and National Housing Bank. 

Networking: The Company’s hub-and-spoke model was 

marked by 35 branches connected to a central corporate office. 

Each branch was reinforced by a credit and disbursement 

officer; the centralised hub connected to its strong marketing 

and distribution network leading to faster loan sanctioning and 

TAT (loan origination to sanction) reduction. 

Sales and marketing: The Company focus on direct sales and 

localised marketing activities by its own employees through 
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door to door visit, Grahak-Loan Mela, leaflet distributions. 

The Company’s sales and marketing teams interact with first 

level lead generators (contractors and cement manufacturers) 

and builders; they conduct site visits to attract customers. The 

Company’s branch offices serve as customer interface points 

where loan, interest rate and other terms are explained.

The Company also attracts ‘walk-in’ customers and referral 

customers from existing borrowers as well as the customer 

base of over 2.50 lac of Au Financier, holding company. This 

approach helped AUHFL to build strong direct personalised 

customer contact leading to loyalty, brand building, better 

understanding the need of customer and minimum error in 

loan appraisal.  

Strong support: The Company’s branch offices coordinates 

with empanelled lawyers and valuers during the credit appraisal 

process leading to timely loan disbursal. 

Robust risk management: The Company coupled a defined 

policy with procedures to address risks as a result of which 

GNPA and net NPA as at 31st March, 2014 were 0.22% and 

0.18% respectively (against 0.27% and 0.23% respectively in 

the previous year). 

Professionally managed: The Company’s professional 

and experienced senior management guided strategy and 

managed operations. These members were drawn from diverse 

sectoral backgrounds, which translated into cross-functional 

competencies. 

Robust platform: The Company invested proactively in systems 

and technology with the objective to strengthen service, 

efficiency and cost-effectiveness. The Company invested in a 

cutting-edge IT-enabled platform that facilitated the formation 

of an online centralised information database. 

Lower funding costs: The Company diversified its funding 

source to optimise costs and enhance liquidity. The Company 

sourced funds from banks, NHB and Financial Institution  at 

competitive rates. The leading rating agency of India CRISIL 

enhanced Company’s   Long Term Rating from CRISIL BBB+/

Stable to CRISIL A-/Stable and Short Term Rating from 

CRISIL A2+ to CRISIL A1, which is expected to translate into 

competitive funds mobilisation. 

Insurance Products: The Company has made arrangement with 

Insurance Companies for providing property insurance of the 

property mortgaged. The Company also continued to persuade 

its customers to take insurance cover on the life of the principal 

income earner as the collateral for its loans, reducing the risk 

on adversities affecting the property owner as the policies are 

assigned in favour of Company.  

Central Registry: As per the Central Registry of Securitisation 

Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of India (CERSAI) 

under section 21 of the SARFAESI Act, 2002 to have a central 

database of all mortgages created by lending institutions. The 

object of this registry is to compile and maintain data relating to 

all transactions secured by mortgages. The lending institutions 

are required to pay fees for uploading the data for creation as 

well as release of mortgage. AUHFL is registered with CERSAI. 

The company has uploaded all records in respect of loans 

disbursed till 31st March, 2014.  

Information Technology (IT): The Information System at AUHFL 

operates under centralized IT environment and all its branches 

are connected through high speed network connectivity. The 

centralized IT environment enables prompt communication 

between its branches and head office, leading to faster MIS 

and preparation of various monthly reports.

AUHFL has strong backbone support of IT and IT security with 

installation of latest System technology and IT Security, IT 

awareness measures across all corporate offices.

Risk management 
AUHFL has formulated a risk management framework which 

lays the procedure for risk assessment and mitigation. AUHFL 

manages various risks like financial risk, operational risk, 

marketing risk, external risk and regulatory risks associated with 

the mortgage business. 

The critical risks which can significantly impact profitability and 

financial strength are credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity 

risk. AUHFL manages credit risk through internal credit norms. 

Cautionary statement
Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis 

describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 

expectations may be “forward-looking statements” within 

the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. 

Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or 

implied. Important factors that could influence the Company’s 

operations include economic developments within the country, 

demand and supply conditions in the industry, input prices, 

changes in Government regulations, tax laws and other factors 

such as litigation and industrial relations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Au Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Au 
Housing Finance Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, and the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards notified under 
the Companies Act, 1956, read with General Circular 8/2014 
dated 4 April 2014 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
This responsibility includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
(a)	 in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2014;

(b)	 in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit 
for the year ended on that date; and 

(c)	 in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 

(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give 
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2.	 As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that: 
	 (a)	 We have obtained all the information and explanations 

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

	 (b)	 In our opinion proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Company so far as appears 
from our examination of those books;

	 (c)	 The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the 
Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 
1956, read with General Circular 8/2014 dated 4 April 
2014 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs; 

	 (e)	 On the basis of written representations received from 
the directors as on March 31, 2014, and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2014, from being appointed 
as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of 
section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

	 For S R B C & CO LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E

	 per Shrawan Jalan
	 Partner 
 Mumbai, May 23, 2014	 Membership No.102102
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” 
of our Report of even date

Re: Au Housing Finance Limited (“the Company”)

(i)	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

	 (b) 	Fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management during the year and no material 
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

	 (c) 	There was no substantial disposal of fixed assets during 
the year. 

(ii)	 The Company is a housing finance company and therefore, 
provisions of clause 4(ii) of the Order related to inventory 
are not applicable.

(iii)	(a)	 According to the information and explanations provided 
by the management, the Company has not granted 
any loans, secured or unsecured to / from companies, 
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 301 of the Act.

	 (b)	 The Company had taken inter-company deposit, 
repayable on demand, from a company covered in 
the register maintained under section 301 of the Act. 
The maximum amount involved during the year was 
H4,110.51 lacs and the year-end balance of loans taken 
from such parties was H645 lacs.

	 (c)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the rate of interest and other 
terms and conditions for such loans are not prima facie 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

	 (d)	 The loans taken are repayable on demand and were 
duly repaid upon such repayment being demanded. The 
payment of interest has been regular.

(iv)	In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal 
control system commensurate with the size of the Company 
and the nature of its business, for purchase of fixed assets 
and for rendering of services. The activities of the Company 
do not involve purchase of inventory and the sale of goods. 
During the course of our audit, we have not observed any 
major weakness or continuing failure to correct any major 
weakness in the internal control system of the Company in 
respect of these areas.

(v)	 According to the information and explanations provided by 
the management, we are of the opinion that the particulars 
of contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 
of the Companies Act, 1956 that need to be entered into 
the register maintained under section 301 have been so 
entered.

(vi)	The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public.

(vii)	In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(viii)	To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central 
Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records 
under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 209 of the Act 
for the services provided by the Company.

(ix) (a)	 The company has generally deposited all undisputed 
statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, 
employees’ state insurance, wealth-tax, service tax, cess 
and other material statutory dues regularly with the 
appropriate authorities  except   delays in a few cases 
pertaining to professional tax and tax deducted at source 
which are not serious in nature. As informed, sales tax, 
provisions of investor education and protection fund, 
custom duty and excise duty are currently not applicable 
to the Company.

      (b)	According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, 
wealth-tax, service tax, cess and other material statutory 
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. As informed, provisions of, investor education 
and protection fund, sales-tax, custom duty and excise 
duty are currently not applicable to the Company.

       (c)	According to the information and explanations given to 
us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-tax, wealth 
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess which 
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(x)	 The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of 
the financial year and it has not incurred cash losses in the 
current and immediately preceding financial year.
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(xi) 	Based on our audit procedures and as per the information 
and explanations given by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of dues to financial institutions, banks or debenture holders. 

(xii)	According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on the documents and records produced before 
us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on 
the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures 
and other securities.

(xiii)	In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi/
mutual benefit fund/society. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)	In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading 
in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

(xv)	According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken 
by others from banks or financial institutions.

(xvi)	Based on information and explanations given to us by the 
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained, though idle/surplus funds 
which were not required for immediate utilization have 
been gainfully invested in liquid investments payable on 
demand. 

(xvii)	According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the 

Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term 
basis have been used for long-term investment.

(xviii)	The Company has not made any preferential allotment 
of shares to parties or companies covered in the register 
maintained under section 301 of the Act.

(xix)	According to the information and explanations given to us, 
during the period covered by our audit report, the Company 
has not issued any secured bonds. 

(xx)	The Company has not raised any money by public issues 
during the year.

(xxi)	Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial 
statements and as per the information and explanations 
given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by 
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

	 For S R B C & CO LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E

	 per Shrawan Jalan
	 Partner 
 Mumbai, May 23, 2014	 Membership No.102102
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The Board of Directors 
AU HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 
19-A, Dhuleshwar Garden, Ajmer Road, 
Jaipur - 302001 
Rajasthan, lndia

We have audited the Balance Sheet of AU HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED (the ‘Company’) as at 31 March 2014 and the Statement 
of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. As per the requirements of 
Housing Finance Companies (‘NHB’) Directions, 2010, we report below on the matters specified in paragraphs 34 and 35 of the 
Directions, based on the procedures performed as a part of our audit of the financial statements: 

i.	 The company was incorporated on 23rd February, 2011 to carry on the business of a housing finance institution and it has 
obtained Certificate of Registration from National Housing Bank on August 04, 2011 for carrying on such activities without 
accepting public deposits. 

ii.	 The company is Non deposit accepting Housing Finance Company. Therefore, the provisions of Section 29B of the National 
Housing Bank Act, 1987 for maintenance of prescribed percentage of assets in terms of clause (iii) of Para 34 of NHB Directions, 
2010 are not applicable to it. 

iii.	 The company has complied with Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 regarding creating of Reserve fund 
equivalent to a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit before dividend for the year. 

iv.	 On the basis of our review of records and information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the 
provision of NHB Directions, 2010 to the extent applicable in its case. 

v.	 The capital adequacy ratio in the return submitted by the company to National Housing Bank has been correctly determined and 
disclosed and such ratio is in compliance with the minimum capital to risk weighted asset ratio as prescribed by the National 
Housing Bank in its directions. 

vi.	 The company has not accepted or is holding any public deposits and thus clause (vii) of Para 34 of NHB Directions, 2010 is not 
applicable to the company. 

vii.	 The company is registered as a non public deposit accepting Housing Finance company and :  

	 a.	 The Board of directors has passed resolution for non acceptance of any public deposits. 

	 b.	 The company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year ended March 31, 2014. 

	 c.	 The company has complied with the applicable prudential norms.

	 For S R B C & CO LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E

	 per Shrawan Jalan
Mumbai	 Partner 
May 23, 2014	 Membership No.102102
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014
H in lacs

Notes  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

I.	 Equity and liabilities 
	 1.	 Shareholders’ funds 
		  a)	 Share capital 2.1  2,991.67  2,725.00 
		  b)	 Reserves & surplus 2.2  2,634.87  185.31 

 5,626.54  2,910.31 
	 2.	 Non-current liabilities 
		  a) 	 Long term borrowings 2.3  25,729.78  10,111.08 
 		  b)	 Long term provisions 2.5  212.61  94.38 

 25,942.39  10,205.46 
	 3.	 Current liabilities 
		  a)	 Short term borrowings 2.6  4,373.27  2,611.13 
		  b)	 Trade payables 2.7  63.88  14.28 
		  c)	 Other current liabilities 2.8  5,761.61  2,828.55 
		  d)	 Short term provisions 2.9  93.22  98.39 

 10,291.98  5,552.35 
TOTAL  41,860.91  18,668.12 
II.	 Assets 
	 1.	 Non-current assets
		  a)	 Fixed assets 2.10
 			   i)	 Tangible assets  531.34  159.09 
 			   ii)	 Intangible assets  7.24  9.99 
 			   iii)	 Capital work in progress  3.11  10.82 
		  b)	 Deferred tax Asset (net) 2.4  59.86  6.88 
		  c)	 Long term loans and advances 2.11
 			   i)	 Loans 2.11.1  38,477.16  16,850.48 
 			   ii)	 Others 2.11.2  13.16  104.40 

 39,091.87  17,141.66 
	 2.	 Current assets
		  a)	 Cash & bank balances 2.12  233.52  568.38 
		  b)	 Short term loans and advances
			   i)	 Loans 2.11.1  2,145.25  900.02 
 			   ii)	 Others 2.13  11.45  8.76 
		  c)	 Other current assets 2.14  378.82  49.30 

 2,769.04  1,526.46 
TOTAL  41,860.91  18,668.12 
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements		    

As per our report of even date	 For and on behalf of the board of directors of Au Housing Finance Limited

For S R B C & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E
Chartered Accountants

per Shrawan Jalan	 Sanjay Agarwal 	  Sushil Kumar Agarwal  	 Sharad Pathak
Partner	 (Managing Director) 	  (Whole-time Director) 	 (Company Secretary)
Membership No. 102102

Place: Mumbai			   Place: Jaipur
Date: May 23, 2014			   Date: May 23, 2014
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements		    

As per our report of even date	 For and on behalf of the board of directors of Au Housing Finance Limited

For S R B C & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E
Chartered Accountants

per Shrawan Jalan	 Sanjay Agarwal 	  Sushil Kumar Agarwal  	 Sharad Pathak
Partner	 (Managing Director) 	  (Whole-time Director) 	 (Company Secretary)
Membership No. 102102

Place: Mumbai			   Place: Jaipur
Date: May 23, 2014			   Date: May 23, 2014

H in lacs

Notes Year ended                 
March 31, 2014

Year ended                 
March 31, 2013

Revenue 

Revenue from operations 2.15  5,653.84  1,739.11 

Other income 2.16  1.05  19.86 

Total Revenue  5,654.89  1,758.97 

Expenses

Employee benefits expenses 2.17  1,274.49  532.43 

Finance cost 2.18  3,017.58  715.82 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.10  41.54  6.65 

Other expenses 2.19  283.23  152.14 

Provision and write off 2.20  99.33  77.93 

Total expenses  4,716.17  1,484.97 

Profit before tax  938.72  274.00 

Tax expenses: 2.21

Current tax  272.70  91.51 

Deferred tax (52.97) (6.04)

 219.73  85.47 

Profit for the year  718.99  188.53 

Earnings per equity share 2.22

Basic (H)  2.64  0.69 

Diluted (H)  2.64  0.69 

Face value per share (H)  10.00  10.00 

Summary of significant accounting policies 1

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2014
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H in lacs

Year ended March 31, 2014 Year ended March 31, 2013

1 Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit before tax as per statement of profit and 
loss

 938.72  274.00 

Add/ (less):

Depreciation and amortisation  41.55  6.65 

Dividend from current investments  (0.08)  (19.86)

Provision for standard and sub-standard assets  99.33  77.93 

Provision for gratuity  11.38  9.33 

Provision for leave encashment  11.30  7.71 

Operating profit before working capital changes  1,102.20  355.76 

Adjustment for increase or decrease in

Loans given (net movement)  (22,871.91)  (17,680.23)

Short term loans and advances  (2.69)  4.56 

Other current assets  (329.52)  (49.30)

Other long term loans and advances  91.24  (104.40)

Trade payables  49.60  13.94 

Other current liabilities  213.49  194.16 

Provisions  (8.66)  77.98 

Direct taxes paid  (272.99)  (62.39)

 (23,131.44)  (17,605.68)

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)  (22,029.24)  (17,249.92)

2 Cash flow from investing activities:

Inflow (outflow) on account of :

Dividend from current investments  0.08  19.86 

Investment in fixed deposits with original maturity of 
more than three months

 500.00  156.35 

Purchase of fixed assets (including capital work-in-
progress)

 (403.34)  (186.55)

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)  96.74  (10.34)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2014
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H in lacs

Year ended March 31, 2014 Year ended March 31, 2013

3 Cash flow from financing activities:

Issue of equity shares  2,000.00  -   

Shares issue expenses  (2.76)  -   

Net proceeds from borrowings  20,390.36  15,052.21 

Net Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C)  22,387.60  15,052.21 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
(A+B+C)

 455.10  (2,208.05)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  (221.58)  1,986.47 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  233.52  (221.58)

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand  30.55  20.34 

Balance with banks

	 In current accounts  202.97  48.04 

	 In deposit account  -    -   

Less: Bank overdraft  -    (289.96)

Total cash and cash equivalents (notes 2.12)  233.52 (221.58) 

Summary of significant accounting policies                    1

Cash Flow Statement (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

As per our report of even date	 For and on behalf of the board of directors of Au Housing Finance Limited

For S R B C & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E
Chartered Accountants

per Shrawan Jalan	 Sanjay Agarwal 	  Sushil Kumar Agarwal  	 Sharad Pathak
Partner	 (Managing Director) 	  (Whole-time Director) 	 (Company Secretary)
Membership No. 102102

Place: Mumbai			   Place: Jaipur
Date: May 23, 2014			   Date: May 23, 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2014

1.   Significant accounting policies:
	 A.	 Corporate information								      
		  Au Housing Finance Limited (the company) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The company is registered with National Housing Bank (NHB) and is engaged in 
the long term financing activity in the domestic markets to provide housing finance.

	 B.	 Basis of preparation
		  The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 

in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the 
accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 read with General Circular 8/2014 dated 4 April 2014 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs. The company has given all disclosers related to NHB Direction 2010. The financial statements have been 
prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention.

		  The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year. 

		  All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria set out in the Revised Schedule VI to The Companies Act, 1956. The company has ascertained it’s operating 
cycle as 12 months for the above purpose.

	 1.1	 Summary of significant accounting policies
	 1.1.1	 Use of estimates:-
		  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best 
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

	 1.1.2	 Change in accounting policy:-
		  During the year ended March 31, 2014, the company has adopted the accounting of Cheque bouncing charges and Legal 

charges on realization basis w.e.f. October 01, 2013. The income is lower by Rs. 19.28 lacs on account of change in the 
method of recognition of above income on realization basis.

	 1.1.3	 Revenue recognition :-

	 a.	 Interest on loans:
	 (i)	 Interest Income on loans is accounted for on accrual basis, except interest on non-performing assets, which is accounted 

on realisation basis.

	 b.	 Fees, other charges and other interest:
	 (i)	 Delayed payment interest in respect of loans are recognised on receipt basis.
	 (ii)	 Administrative fees and processing fees is recognised in the year in which the loan is disbursed.
	 (iii)	 Revenue from interest on bank deposits and investments are recognised on accrual basis.
	 (iv)	 Income from cheque bouncing charges is recognised on receipt basis

	 c. 	Income from investments:
		  Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the  dividend is established.

	 d.	 Fixed assets and depreciation / amortization
		  Tangible assets:
		  Fixed assets are stated at cost. Cost comprises of the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the assets to its 

working condition for its intended use. Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on a written down value basis using the 
rates those prescribed under the Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. The company has used the following rates to 
provide depreciation on its fixed assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

Fixed assets Rates (WDV)
Building 5.00%
Furniture and fixtures 18.10%
Office equipment 13.91%
Computer & printer 40.00%

		  Gain or loss arising from sale of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the assets disposed, and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss In the period when the asset 
is sold.

	 	 Amortisation of intangible assets
		  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 

assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

		  Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The company has revised 
the useful life of its intangible asset from five years to four years.

Intangible assets Rates (SLM)

Software 25.00%

	 1.1.4	 Tax:-
		  Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid 

to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

		  Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating 
during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates 
and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

		  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible 
timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or 
carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 
evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

		  Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority.

		  At each reporting date, the company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred 
tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

		  The company has passed a Board Resolution that it has no intention to make withdrawal from the Special Reserve created 
and maintained under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Special Reserve created is not capable of being 
reversed and is considered a permanent difference.

	 1.1.5	 Earning per share:-
		  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders  by 

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a 
fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share 
during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for 
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that 
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

		  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED    



	 1.1.6	 Provisions/write offs on housing loans:- 
	 (i)	 Housing loans are classified as per the NHB guidelines, into performing and non-performing assets. Further, non-

performing assets are classified into sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets and provision made based on criteria stipulated 
by NHB guidelines. Additional provisions are made against specific non-performing assets over and above as stated in NHB 
guidelines, if in the opinion of the management higher provision is necessary.

	 (ii)	 The company maintains general provision to cover potential credit losses, which are inherent in any loan portfolio but not 
identified, In accordance with NHB Guidelines.

	 1.1.7	 Investment:-
		  Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such 

investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

		  On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises of purchase price and directly attributable 
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of 
shares or other securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of the securities issued. If an investment is acquired in 
exchange for another asset, the acquisition is determined by reference to the fair value of the asset given up or by reference 
to the fair value of the investment acquired, whichever is more clearly evident.

		  Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual 
investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize 
a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

		  On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited 
to the statement of profit and loss.

	 1.1.8	 Retirement and other employee benefits:-
		  Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other 

than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund 
scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for 
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme 
is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the 
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent 
that the pre payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

		  The company provides gratuity benefits which is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing gratuity benefits is 
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for each plan 
using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur 
in the statement of profit and loss.

		  Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. 
The company measures the expected cost of such absence as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of 
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company treats accumulated leave expected to 
be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long term employee benefit for measurement purposes.

		  Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

	 1.1.9	 Leases:-
	 	 Operating Leases
		  Lease Rental in respect of assets taken on operating leases are charged to the statement of profit and loss account on 

straight line basis over the lease term

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014
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(ii) Shares held by holding company					   

Name of the shareholder
 As at March 31, 2014  As at March 31, 2013

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

Au Financiers (India) Ltd.  29,916,667  100.00  27,250,000  100.00 

2,99,16,667  Equity Shares of H10/- each fully paid

Total  29,916,667  100.00  27,250,000  100.00 

(i)  The Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

Name of the shareholder
 As at March 31, 2014  As at March 31, 2013

No. of shares I In lacs No. of shares I In lacs

Equity share at the beginning of period  27,250,000  2,725.00  27,250,000  2,725.00 

Add: Equity share allotted during period  2,666,667  266.67  -    -   

Equity share at the end of period  29,916,667  2,991.67  27,250,000  2,725.00 

2.1 Share capital
Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Authorized shares

3,00,00,000 (P.Y. 2,72,50,000) Equity Shares of H10/- each.  3,000.00  2,725.00 

 3,000.00  2,725.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up shares

2,99,16,667 (P.Y. 2,72,50,000) Equity Shares of H10/- each  2,991.67  2,725.00 

Total  2,991.67  2,725.00 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

2. Notes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2014

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders 
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

	1.1.10	 Cash and cash equivalent:-
		  Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash in hand, demand deposits and time deposits with original maturity of less than 

three months held with bank, and bank overdraft.

	1.1.11	 Provision and contingencies:-
		  Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past events, for which it is probable 

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. 
Provisions required to settle are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary to reflect the current best estimates 
of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
that probably will not require an outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of obligation cannot be made.	

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED    



2.2. Reserves & surplus
H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

a.	 Special Reserve u/s 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 read with 
section 36 (1) (viii) of income tax Act. 1961*

Balance at the beginning of the year
	 a)	 Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987  -    -   
	 b)	 Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into 

account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 
1987

 67.28  0.08 

	 c) Total  67.28  0.08 
Addition /Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add: a)	 Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987  -    -   
	 b)	 Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into 

account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 
1987

 195.52  67.20 

Less: a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the  NHB Act, 1987  -    -   
	 b)	 Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into 

account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 
1987

 -    -   

Balance at the end of the year
	 a)	 Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987  -    -   
	 b)	 Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into 

account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 
1987

 262.80  67.28 

	 c)	 Total  262.80  67.28 
b.	 Surplus / (deficit) in the statement  of profit and loss
	 Balance as per last financial statement  118.03  (3.30)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

(iii) Detail of share holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder
 As at March 31, 2014  As at March 31, 2013

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

Au Financiers (India) Ltd.  29,916,667  100.00  27,250,000  100.00 

2,99,16,667  Equity Shares of H10/- each fully paid

Total  29,916,667  100.00  27,250,000  100.00 

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders 
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(iv) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity shares: 
The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share 
held. The dividend as and when proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive 
the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

2.1 Share capital (Contd.)
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* Section 29C (i) of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 defines that every housing finance institution which is a company shall create 
a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit every year as disclosed  in the statement of 
profit and loss before any dividend is declared. For this purpose any special reserve created by the company under Section 36(1) (viii) 
of Income tax Act 1961, is considered to be an eligible transfer. The company has transferred an amount of Rs. 195.52 lacs (previous 
year Rs. 67.20 lacs) to special reserve in terms of Section 36(1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act 1961 considered eligible for special reserve 
u/s 29C of NHB Act 1987. The company doesn’t anticipate any withdrawal from special reserve in foreseeable future. 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

2.3 Long term borrowings
H in lacs

Particulars
 As at March 31, 2014  As at March 31, 2013

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current

Secured

Loans from banks  24,062.32  5,299.76  10,034.82  2,315.18 

Loans from a financial institution  167.46  39.76  76.26  14.82 

Unsecured

Loans from banks  1,500.00  -    -    -   

Amount disclosed under the head "other current liabilities" 
(refer Note 2.8)

(5,339.52) (2,330.00) 

Total  25,729.78  -    10,111.08  -   

Secured term loans from Banks include loans from various banks and carry rate of interest in the range of 10.00% to 12.50% p.a. 
The loan are having tenure of 3 to 10 years from the date of issue and are repayable in monthly or quarterly installments. These 
loans are secured by hypothecation (exclusive charge) of the loans given by the Company. Loans from banks to the extent of Rs. 
7,038.46 lacs (P.Y.: Rs. 10,311.61 lacs) have been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of a director of the Company. The term 
loans are further guaranteed by corporate guarantee of Au Financiers (India) Ltd (holding company) to the extent of Rs.29,362.08 
lacs (P.Y. Rs. 12,532.30 lacs)

Loans from a financial institutions carries interest rate @ 13% p.a. and are for a tenure of 5 years from the date of issue. The loans 
are repayable in equal monthly installments of Rs.5.56 lacs each (P.Y.: Rs. 2.15 lacs). The loans have been guaranteed by personal 
guarantee of the director of the Company and hypothecation of fixed assets.

The company has taken Subordinate debt (unsecured) from bank for a tenure of six years carrying rate of Interest of 13.50%, 
repayable at the end of tenure in three equal monthly installments.

	 Add: Net profit after tax transferred from statement of profit and loss  718.99  188.53 
 837.02  185.23 

	 Less:  Appropriation
	 Special reserve u/s 36 (1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961  195.52  67.20 
	 Total (b) Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss  641.50  118.03 
c.	 Share Premium  -    -   
	 Balance as per last Financial Statement  -    -   
	 Add: Received during the year  1,733.33  -   
	 Less: Utilisation during the year towards share issue expenses  2.76  -   
	 Total (c) Share Premium Reserve  1,730.57  -   
Total reserve and surplus   (a+b+c)  2,634.87  185.31 

2.2. Reserves & surplus (Contd.)

H in lacs

Particulars
 As at

March 31, 2014 
 As at

March 31, 2013 
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2.5 Long term provisions
H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Provision for employee benefits.

	 Gratuity  19.63  8.85 

 	 Leave encashment  15.44  7.32 

Other provisions

   	 Provision for non performing asset  13.93  7.21 

   	 Provision for standard assets as per NHB Norms  163.61  71.00 

Total  212.61  94.38 

H in lacs

Particulars
 As at March 31, 2014  As at March 31, 2013

Loans Provision Loans Provision
Standard assets
  	 Housing Loan  38,513.18  155.46  17,397.17  69.78 
 	 Other loans  2,019.89  8.15  305.29  1.22 

 40,533.07  163.61  17,702.46  71.00 
Sub-Standard Assets
  	 Housing Loan  80.19  12.03  47.34  7.10 
  	 Other loans  3.90  0.59  0.71  0.11 

 84.09  12.62  48.05  7.21 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

2.4 Deferred tax asset (net)
H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Deferred tax liability
Fixed asset :  Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/
amortization charged for the financial reporting

 (10.90) (2.75) 

Provision for special reserve u/s 29C of NHB Act read with section 36 (1) (viii) of IT Act. 
1961

 -   (21.80) 

Gross deferred tax liability (10.90) (24.55) 
Deferred tax asset
Preliminary expenses written off in books but benefit of set off over 5 years  0.27  0.53 
Provision for standard assets  53.08  23.03 
Provisions on non performing assets  4.52  2.34 
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment  12.89  5.53 
Gross deferred tax asset  70.76  31.43 
Net Deferred Tax Asset  59.86  6.88 

The deferred tax liability created in earlier years in respect of special reserve under section 36 (1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act 1961 has 
been reversed based on the Board’s resolution that the company has no intention to make withdrawal from such reserve created.

2.5.1 Provision in respect of standard, sub standard, doubtful and loss assets are recorded in accordance with the guidelines 
on prudential norms as specified by National Housing Bank and are as follows.
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2.6 Short term borrowings
H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Secured
From Bank  2,853.27  2,611.13 
Unsecured
From Financial Institutions  875.00  -   
From other parties  645.00  -   

 4,373.27  2,611.13 

2.7. Trade payables
H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Trade payables (refer Note 2.28)  63.88  14.28 

Total  63.88  14.28 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

Cash credit borrowings from bank are secured against hypothecation of housing loans given by the Company, are repayable 
on demand and carry interest rates ranging from 11% to 13%. All cash credit borrowings are further guaranteed by corporate 
guarantee of Au Financiers (India) Ltd (holding company). Also, cash credit borrowings to the extent of Rs. 1,000.00 lacs (PY: Rs. 
1,200.00 lacs) are secured by personal guarantee of a director of the Company.

Unsecured short term borrowing represent commercial paper issued to Financial Institutions. The commercial paper has a maturity 
of nine months and was issued at discounting rate of 12.25%

2.8. Other current liabilities
H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Current maturities of long term debts (refer Note 2.3)
   	 From bank- term loan  5,299.76  2,315.18 
 	 From financial institution- term loan  39.76  14.82 

H in lacs

Particulars
 As at March 31, 2014  As at March 31, 2013

Loans Provision Loans Provision
Doubtful assets
 	 Housing Loan  4.99  1.25  -    -   
  	 Other loans  0.26  0.06  -    -   

 5.25  1.31  -    -   
Loss assets
	 Housing Loan  -    -    -    -   
 	 Other loans  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
Total  40,622.41  177.54  17,750.51  78.21 

2.5 Long term provisions (Contd.)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

2.9. Short term provisions
H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Provision for employee benefit
   	 Gratuity  1.09  0.49 
  	 Leave encashment  3.57  0.39 
    	 Others benefits  56.00  64.66 
Others
  	 Provision for direct taxes (net of prepaid taxes)  32.56  32.85 
Total  93.22  98.39 

2.10 Fixed assets - Tangible assets
H in lacs

Tangible assets  Building and 
premises 

 Computers and 
printers 

 Furniture and 
fixtures 

 Office 
equipments 

 Total 

Cost 
At April 1, 2012  -    -    -    -    -   
Additions  152.44  7.01  1.96  3.82  165.23 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   
At April 1, 2013  152.44  7.01  1.96  3.82  165.23 
Additions  293.04  28.62  66.83  22.55  411.04 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   
At March 31, 2014  445.48  35.63  68.79  26.37  576.27 
Depreciation
At April 1, 2012  -    -    -    -    -   
Charge for the year  2.84  2.27  0.60  0.43  6.14 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   
At March 31, 2013  2.84  2.27  0.60  0.43  6.14 
Charge for the year  21.29  7.97  7.41  2.12  38.79 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   
At March 31, 2014  24.13  10.24  8.01  2.55  44.93 
Net Block
At March 31, 2013  149.60  4.74  1.36  3.39  159.09 
At March 31, 2014  421.35  25.39  60.78  23.82  531.34 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings
  	 From bank- term loan  175.22  81.62 
    	 From financial institution- term loan  1.26  0.60 
Other payables
   	 Statutory liabilities  16.28  11.19 
 	 Other current liabilities (refer Note 2.28)  229.33  115.18 
Bank overdraft  -    289.96 
Total  5,761.61  2,828.55 

2.8. Other current liabilities (Contd.)

H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 
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2.11 Long term loans and advances  
H in lacs

Particulars
 As at March 31, 2014  As at March 31, 2013

Non-current Current Non-current Current

Secured

2.11.1	Housing loans

       	 - Considered good  36,465.83  2,047.35  16,513.46  883.71 

      	 - Considered doubtful  82.59  2.60  47.34  -   

      	 Other loans

		  - Considered good  1,924.69  95.19  288.98  16.31 

       	 - Considered doubtful  4.05  0.11  0.70  -   

Total  38,477.16  2,145.25  16,850.48  900.02 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

2.10 Fixed assets - Tangible assets (Contd.)

H in lacs

Intangible assets  Software  Total 

Gross block

At April 1, 2012  -    -   

Purchase  10.50  10.50 

At March 31, 2013  10.50  10.50 

Purchase  -    -   

At March 31, 2014  10.50  10.50 

Amortization

At April 1, 2012  -    -   

Charge for the year  0.51  0.51 

At March 31, 2013  0.51  0.51 

Charge for the year  2.75  2.75 

At March 31, 2014  3.26  3.26 

Net block

At March 31, 2013  9.99  9.99 

At March 31, 2014  7.24  7.24 

H in lacs

Capital work in progress  Software  Total 

Gross block

At April 1, 2012  -    -   

Purchase  10.82  10.82 

At March 31, 2013  10.82  10.82 

Capitalised during the year  10.82  10.82 

Purchase  3.11  3.11 

At March 31, 2014  3.11  3.11 
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2.11.2 Other long term loans and advances (unsecured, considered good)

H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Capital advance  -    104.03 

Security deposit  11.51  0.25 

Advance to staff  1.65  0.12 

Total  13.16  104.40 

2.11.1.3	 Housing loans sanctioned but un-disbursed amount is H2487.56 lacs as on 31 March 2014 (P.Y.: H1456.12 lacs).

2.11.1.2 Of the above :				 

H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Standard  40,533.06  17,702.45 

Sub-Standard  84.10  48.05 

Doubtful asset  5.25  -   

Total  40,622.41  17,750.50 

2.12 Cash and bank balances
H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  30.55  20.34 

Balance with banks

In Current accounts  202.97  48.04 

 233.52  68.38 

Other bank balances

Deposit with original maturity of more than 12 months  -    500.00 

Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months less than 12 months  -    -   

 -    500.00 

Total  233.52  568.38 

2.12.1	 Cash on hand includes H1.64 lacs balance of franking machine.

2.11.1.1	 Loans granted by the company are secured by equitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/or undertaking 
to create a security and/or personal guarantees and/or hypothecation of assets and/or assignments of life insurance policies. 
The process of security creation was in progress for housing loans to the extent of Rs. 319.85 lacs at March 31, 2014 (P.Y.: 
Rs. 589.00 lacs).

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

2.11 Long term loans and advances (Contd.)
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2.13 Short term loans and advances (unsecured, considered good)
H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Unsecured loans and advances
Advances to employees  4.79  1.02 
Advances to suppliers/service providers  4.24  4.59 
Security deposits  2.42  2.67 
Interest accrued on fixed deposit  -    0.48 
Total  11.45  8.76 

2.14 Other current assets
H in lacs

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

Sundry debtors  141.88  48.13 
Interest accrued but not due  227.71  -   
Unamortised Discount on CP  2.69  -   
Cenvat credit  6.54  1.17 
Total  378.82  49.30 

2.15 Revenue from operations
H in lacs

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2014 

 Year ended
March 31, 2013 

a. Income from finance activity  5,035.34  1,238.51 
b. Interest from fixed deposits with banks  -    72.48 
c. Fees and other charges from customers  618.50  428.12 
Grand Total  5,653.84  1,739.11 

2.17 Employee benefits expenses
H in lacs

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2014 

 Year ended
March 31, 2013 

Salaries and other benefits  1,224.48  509.76 
Contribution to provident and other funds  38.99  18.30 
Staff welfare expenses  11.02  4.37 
Total  1,274.49  532.43 

2.16 Other income
H in lacs

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2014 

 Year ended
March 31, 2013 

Dividend income  0.08  19.86 
Other non operating income  0.97  -   
Total  1.05  19.86 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014
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2.18 Finance cost
H in lacs

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2014 

 Year ended
March 31, 2013 

Bank charges  7.63  2.91 

Interest  2,896.45  525.90 

Processing fees and other charges  112.22  187.01 

Interest on tax  1.28  -   

Total  3,017.58  715.82 

2.19 Other expenses
H in lacs

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2014 

 Year ended
March 31, 2013 

Advertisement and publicity expenses  8.46  5.18 

Postage & courier expenses  9.44  1.03 

Communication  19.24  10.42 

Commission & brokerage  1.92  1.20 

Electricity and water  17.96  7.50 

Fee & subscription  0.50  12.56 

Legal & professional charges  40.35  22.14 

AMC Charges  5.32  -   

Office expenses                11.59  8.15 

Printing & stationery  18.03  13.76 

Rent  38.48  14.63 

Rates & Taxes Expenses  1.71  -   

Repair and maintenance -others  7.12  3.92 

Travelling and conveyance  94.18  47.65 

Auditor's remuneration

 	 - Audit fees  6.00  3.00 

 	 - Tax audit fees  1.00  1.00 

 	 - Other services  1.93  -   

Total  283.23  152.14 

Auditor’s remuneration

H in lacs

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2014 

 Year ended
March 31, 2013 

 	 - Audit fees  6.00  3.00 

  	 - Tax audit fees  1.00  1.00 

	 - Other services  1.93  -   

 8.93  4.00 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014
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2.21 Tax
H in lacs

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2014 

 Year ended
March 31, 2013 

Provision for tax  272.70  91.51 

Deferred tax  (52.97)  (6.04)

Total  219.73  85.47 

2.20 Provisions and write off
H in lacs

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2014 

 Year ended
March 31, 2013 

a.	 Provisions for the year

	 Provision for Non performing asset  13.93  7.21 

	 Provision for standard assets as per NHB Norms  163.61  71.00 

 177.54  78.21 

b.  Provisions made last year

	 Provision for Non performing asset  7.21  -   

	 Provision for standard assets as per NHB Norms  71.00  0.28 

 78.21  0.28 

Net provision made during the year (a-b)  99.33  77.93 

c.  Write off during the year  -    -   

Total  99.33  77.93 

2.22 Earning per share

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2014 

 Year ended
March 31, 2013 

Following reflects the profit and share data used in basic EPS computations:

Basic and diluted

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year ended March 
31, 2014 (Nos. in lacs)

 272.72  272.50 

Net profit  for calculation of basic EPS (Rs. in lacs)  718.99  188.53 

Basic and diluted earning per share (In Rs.)  2.64  0.69 

Face value of equity shares (In Rs.)  10.00  10.00 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Benefit asset/ liability

H in lacs

Particulars Gratuity

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Present value of defined benefit obligation  20.72  9.33 

Fair value of plan assets  -    -   

Plan asset / (liability)  20.72  9.33 

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost

H in lacs

Particulars Gratuity

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Current service cost  10.94  3.54 

Interest cost  0.77  -   

Expected return on plan assets  -    -   

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year  (0.33)  5.79 

Net benefit expense  11.38  9.33 

Actual return on plan assets  -    -   

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

H in lacs

Particulars March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Opening defined benefit obligation  9.33  -   

Current service cost  10.94  3.54 

Interest cost  0.77  -   

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation  (0.33)  5.79 

Closing defined benefit obligation  20.71  9.33 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

2.23	 The company is primarily engaged in the business of housing finance . Further the company does not have any separate 
geographic segment other than India. As such there are no separate  reportable segment as per AS 17 “ Segment Reporting”.

2.24	 The company has been granted Certificate of Registration (No. 08.0095.11) to commence/carry on the business of a housing 
finance institution without accepting public deposits by National Housing Bank on August 04, 2011 and got a revised 
Certificate of Registration (02.0104.13) after conversion of company from Private Limited to Limited. on February 08. 2013.

2.25	 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
		  The company has defined benefit plan of gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has 

completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year 
of service.

		  The following tables summarize the components of net benefits expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and 
the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED    



The Principle assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the company are shown below:

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Discount rate 9.25% 8.25%

Salary escalation rate 6.50% 6.00%

Employee Turnover age 30 = 5%

1.00%
age 31-40 = 3%

age 41-50 = 2%

age 51 & above = 1%

		  The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

2.26 Capital and other commitments:  
H in lacs

Particulars

 As at March 31, 2014  As at March 31, 2013

Project cost
Paid during 

the year
balance 
payable

Project cost
Paid during 

the year
balance 
payable

Tangible assets  -    -    -    256.50  102.50  154.00 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

2.25	 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans (Contd.)

2.27	 As per the Accounting Standard 18 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India on 
‘Related Party Disclosures’, the disclosures of related parties of the company are as follows:

		  1.	 Entities where control exists:
			   Holding company
			   Au Financiers (India) Limited

			   Fellow subsidiary	
			   Index Money Limited

		  2. 	 Key management personnel
			   Mr. Sanjay Agarwal	 Managing Director
			   Mr. Uttam Tibrewal	 Director
			   Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal	 Whole Time director

		  3. 	 Enterprises under significant influence of the key management personnel (with whom there were transactions during the year)
			   Au Insurance Broking Services Pvt. Ltd

		  4. 	 Relatives of key managerial personnel (with whom there were transactions during the year/previous year)
			   None
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Other Transactions

H in lacs
Name of related 
party

Nature of related 
party

Nature of 
transactions

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Amount 
received

Amount 
paid

Outstanding 
balance

Amount 
received

Amount 
paid

Outstanding 
balance

Au Financiers (India) 
Limited

Holding Company Equity shares  2,000.00  -    -    -    -    -   

Au Financiers (India) 
Limited

Holding Company Reimbursement of 
expenses

 -    52.08  2.44  -    69.44 4.31

Au Financiers (India) 
Limited

Holding Company Reimbursement of 
expenses

 10.30  -    -    0.31  -   

Au Financiers (India) 
Limited

Holding Company Reimbursement of 
Statutory payments

 -    70.19  -    -    -    -   

Au Insurance Broking 
Services Private 
Limited

Enterprise under 
significant influence 
of KMP

Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.30  -    -    -    -    -  

b. Remuneration to key managerial personnel

H in lacs

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal, Whole Time Director & CEO

Salary and bonus  99.57  28.56 

Total  99.57  28.56 

		  Notes: 
		  (a)	 The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, 

as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the company as a whole.

		  (b)	 The Company’s whole time director was appointed on January 10, 2013. However the resolution for approval of increase 
in his remuneration were passed by the Remunerations Committee on May 29, 2013 and the approval by a special 
shareholders resolution was taken on Aug 26, 2013. 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

The nature and volume of transactions carried out with the above related parties in the ordinary course of business are as 
follows :							     

a. Loans taken and repayment there of

H in lacs

Year ended Loans taken Repayment
Interest due & 

paid

Amount owed 
to related 

parties

Au Financiers (India) Limited March 31, 2014  24,289.72  23,644.72  166.00  645.00 

March 31, 2013  11,754.00  11,754.00  69.33  -   

2.27	 As per the Accounting Standard 18 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India on ‘Related 
Party Disclosures’, the disclosures of related parties of the company are as follows: (Contd.)

		  Loans taken from related parties are repayable on demand. These loans carry interest rate @ of 15% p.a.	
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b. Exposures to real estate sector:-		 H in lacs

Category  As at
March 31, 2014 

 As at
March 31, 2013 

(A)	Direct exposure
	 i)	 Residential mortgages :
		  Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will 

be occupied by the borrower or that is rented; 
 40,622.41  17,750.50 

	 ii)	 Commercial real estate :
		  Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office 

buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family 
residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or 
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, 
etc). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits;

Nil Nil

	 iii)	 Investments in mortgage backed securities (MBS) and other 
securitized exposures :

		  (a)	 Residential Nil Nil
		  (b)	Commercial real estate. Nil Nil
(B)	Indirect exposure
	 Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) 

and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).
Nil Nil

2.30	 The disclosure as per NHB Circular no. NHB/ND/DRS/Pol-No. 35/2010-11 dated October 11, 2010 
is as under:							     
a. Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR):-			   H in lacs

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2014 

 Year ended
March 31, 2013 

CRAR (%) 31.21% 28.87%

CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 24.02% 28.17%

CRAR - Tier II capital (%) 7.19% 0.70%

H in lacs

Name of related party Nature of related party Nature of transactions March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Amount involved Amount involved

Au Financiers (India) Limited Holding Company Corporate guarantee  31,862.08  23,000.00 

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Managing director Personnel guarantee  8,038.46  11,450.00 

Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal Whole time  director Personnel guarantee  207.21  91.08 

2.28	 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006	
		  The Company has initiated the process of inviting information from its vendors regarding their status under MSMED Act.  

As per the information available with the Company, there are no dues or principal amounts payable to any micro or small 
enterprises as on the date of balance sheet. This information has been relied upon by the statutory auditors.

2.29	 There is no penalty imposed on company by National Housing Bank during the year.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

2.27	 As per the Accounting Standard 18 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India on ‘Related 
Party Disclosures’, the disclosures of related parties of the company are as follows: (Contd.)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.) for the year ended March 31, 2014

c. Asset liability management

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities *

(H in lacs)

Particulars Liabilities Assets

Borrowings 
from banks 

Market 
borrowings

Total Advance Investments Total

1 Day to 31 Days / One 
month 

 284.98  878.10  1,163.08  218.07  -    218.07 

Over 1 month to 2 month  284.98  3.14  288.12  178.80  -    178.80 

Over 2 month to 3 month  596.70  3.17  599.87  181.61  -    181.61 

Over 3 month to 6 month  1,365.05  9.76  1,374.81  561.20  -    561.20 

Over 6 month to 1 year  5,621.32  665.58  6,286.90  1,200.12  -    1,200.12 

Over 1 year to 3 years  10,592.17  98.59  10,690.76  5,965.72  -    5,965.72 

Over 3 year to 5 years  8,507.18  68.86  8,576.04  7,573.99  -    7,573.99 

Over 5 year to 7 years  5,750.00  -    5,750.00  8,399.16  -    8,399.16 

Over 7 year to 10 years  514.24  -    514.24  12,309.10  -    12,309.10 

Over 10 years  198.75  -    198.75  4,034.64  -    4,034.64 

Total  33,715.37  1,727.20  35,442.57  40,622.41  -    40,622.41 

		  * Classification of assets and liabilities under different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and assumptions as 
used by the company for compiling the return submitted to NHB.

2.30	 The disclosure as per NHB Circular no. NHB/ND/DRS/Pol-No. 35/2010-11 dated October 11, 2010 
is as under: (Contd.)

As per our report of even date	 For and on behalf of the board of directors of Au Housing Finance Limited

For S R B C & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E
Chartered Accountants

per Shrawan Jalan	 Sanjay Agarwal 	  Sushil Kumar Agarwal  	 Sharad Pathak
Partner	 (Managing Director) 	  (Whole-time Director) 	 (Company Secretary)
Membership No. 102102

Place: Mumbai			   Place: Jaipur
Date: May 23, 2014			   Date: May 23, 2014
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FOURTH ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF AU HOUSING 

FINANACE LIMITED WILL BE HELD AT 10.00 A.M, ON 

TUESDAY THE 22ND DAY OF JULY, 2014 AT THE REGISTERED 

OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT 19-A, DHULESHWAR GARDEN, 

AJMER ROAD, JAIPUR – 302001 (RAJASTHAN) TO TRANSACT 

THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the audited statement 

of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2014, 
the Balance Sheet as at that date and the Reports of the 
Directors and the Auditors thereon..

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Agarwal, 
(holding DIN No. 00009526), liable to retire by rotation in 
terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3.	 To re-appoint the Auditors and to fix their remuneration 
and in this regards pass with or without modification(s), the 

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (corresponding to Section 224 and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
1956), S. R. B. C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration No: 324982E), be and are hereby re-appointed 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office 
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
till the conclusion of the seventh Annual General Meeting 
of the company to be held in the year 2017 (subject to 
ratification  of their appointment at every AGM), at a 
remuneration to be decided by the Board of Directors in 
consultation with the Auditors plus applicable service tax 
and reimbursement of travelling and out of pocket expenses 
incurred by them for the purpose of audit.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4.	 To borrow money in excess of Paid up Capital and Free 

Reserve of the Company u/s 180(1)(c) and to sell, lease 
or otherwise dispose of the Assets of the Company for 
such borrowings u/s 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 
2013:

	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act 2013 (including any amendment thereto 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company for borrowing from 
time to time as they may think fit, any sum or sums of 
money not exceeding H1,500 Crores (Rupees One Thousand 
Five Hundred Crores Only) [including the money already 
borrowed by the Company] in Indian Rupees or equivalent 
thereof in any foreign currency(ies) on such terms and 
conditions as the Board may deem fit, whether the same 
may be secured or unsecured and if secured, whether 
domestic or international, whether by way of mortgage, 
charge or hypothecation, pledge or otherwise in any way 
whatsoever, on, over or in any respect of all, or any of the 
company’s assets and effects or properties including stock 
in trade (receivables), notwithstanding that the money to 
be borrowed together with the money already borrowed 
by the Company (apart from the temporary loans obtained 
from the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of 
business) and remaining un-discharged at any given time, 
exceed the aggregate, for the time being, of the paid up 
capital of the Company and its free reserves, that is to say, 
reserves not set apart for any specific purpose. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 
Company (hereinafter called “the Board” which term shall 
be deemed to include any Committee thereof, which the 
Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to 
exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this 
resolution and with the power to delegate such authority 
to any person or persons) be and is hereby authorized for 
borrowing from time to time as it may think fit, any sum or 
sums of money but not exceeding H1,500 Crores (Rupees 
One Thousand Five Hundred Crores Only) in Indian Rupees or 
equivalent thereof in any foreign currency(ies) in aggregate 
(including the monies already borrowed by the Company) 
and on such terms and conditions as the Board may deem 
fit, by way of loans or in any other form whatsoever from, 
or issue of Bonds and/or Debentures or other Securities or 
Term Loans, Cash Credit facilities or other facilities in form 
of debt in the nature of Debentures, Commercial Papers and 
the like to Bank(s), Financial or other Institution(s), Mutual 
Fund(s), Non-Resident Indians (NRIs), Foreign Institutional 
Investors (FIIs) or any other person(s), body(ies) corporate, 
etc., whether shareholder of the Company or not.
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	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the 
consent of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded to 
Board of Directors (hereinafter called “the Board” which term 
shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof, which 
the Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to 
exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this 
resolution and with the power to delegate such authority to 
any person or persons) to mortgage and/or charge any of its 
movable and / or immovable properties wherever situated 
both present and future or to sell, lease or otherwise dispose 
off the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking 
of the Company or where the Company owns more than 
one undertaking, of the whole or substantially the whole of 
any such undertaking(s) and to create a mortgage/and or 
charge, on such terms and conditions at such time(s) and in 
such form and manner, and with such ranking as to priority 
as the Board in its absolute discretion thinks fit on the 
whole or substantially the whole of the Company’s any one 
or more of the undertakings or all of the undertakings of 
the Company in favor of any bank(s) or body(ies) corporate 
or person(s), whether shareholders of the Company or not, 
together with interest, cost, charges and expenses thereon 
for amount not exceeding H1,500 Crores (Rupees One 
Thousand Five Hundred Crores Only) at any point of time. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the securities to be created by 
the Company aforesaid may rank exclusive/prior/pari passu/
subsequent with/to the hypothecation/mortgages and/or 
charges already created or to be created by the company as 
may be agreed to between the concerned parties. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and to 
sign all such documents and writings as may be necessary, 
expedient and incidental thereto including delegating its 
powers under the resolution to give effect to this resolution 

and for matter connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

5.	 To Approve the revision of remuneration of Mr. Sushil 
Kumar Agarwal, WTD & CEO as recommended by 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

	 “RESOLVED THAT in modification to the earlier resolutions 
passed in this regard and as per recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, pursuant to 
the provisions of Sections 197, 203, Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of  the Companies Act,1953 
(hereinafter referred to as “the said Act”)(including any 
statutory modification(s), enactment(s) or re-enactment (s) 
thereof for the time being in force), and the consent  of 

the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
for the revision of remuneration  of Mr. Sushil Kumar 
Agarwal, Whole Time Director of the Company w.e.f. 1st 
April, 2014 for the remaining period of his tenure i.e. upto 
9th January, 2016 as set out in the Memorandum placed in 
the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto with the other 
existing terms for his appointment remaining unaltered.

	 Remuneration: Upto a maximum of H1,30,00,000/- p. a.  

w.e.f. 1st April, 2014

	 (i)	 Salary: Salary shall include Basic Salary, Company’s 
Contribution to provident Fund and Gratuity Fund 
and an amount by way of commission/Bonus, payable 
annually in addition to the salary, calculated with 
reference to the performance of the Company in a 
particular financial year, at the discretion of and as may 
be determined by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and decided Board of Directors at the end 
of each financial year

		  The Annual salary and increments will be merit based and 
will be proposed by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and decided Board of Directors depending 
on the performance of the Whole Time Director, the 
Profitability of the Company and other relevant factors.

	 Perquisites: In addition to above the Whole time Director 
shall be eligible for perquisites not exceeding the overall 
ceiling prescribed under schedule V, annexed to the 
Companies Act, 2013 

	 In addition to the perquisites, Mr. Sushil Kumar Agrawal 
shall also be entitled to the following benefits, which 
shall not be included in the computation of ceiling on 

remuneration mentioned above, as permissible by law:

	 (i)	 Contribution to Provident Fund / Superannuation Fund 
or Annuity Fund will not be included in the computation 
of ceiling on perquisites to the extent these, either singly 
or put together, are not taxable under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961.  

	 (ii)	 Gratuity payable shall not exceed half a month’s basic 
salary for each completed year of service as per the rules 
of the Company. 

	 (iii)	Leave and Leave Encashment as per the rules of the 
Company if any. 

OTHER TERMS & CONDITIONS:
a)	 Reimbursement of Expenses: Apart from the remuneration 

as aforesaid, Mr. Sushil Kumar Agrawal, shall also be entitled 
to reimbursement of such expenses as are genuinely and 
actually incurred in efficient discharge of his official duties 
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in connection  with the business of the Company.

b)	 Rotational Director: He shall be liable to retire by rotation.

c)	 Where in any financial year, the company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the foregoing amount of 
remuneration and benefits shall be paid to Mr. Sushil Kumar 
Agrawal, subject to the applicable provisions of Schedule V 
of the Companies Act 2013.  

d)	 Mr. Sushil Kumar Agrawal will perform the duties and 
exercise the powers, which from time to time may be 
assigned to or vested in him by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

e)	 The terms & conditions as above including remuneration, 
may be altered / varied from time to time by the Board 
of Directors as it may, deem fit within the maximum 
amount payable to the appointee in accordance with 
Schedule V annexed to the Companies Act, 2013 as may be 
amended from time to time or any other relevant Statutory 
enactment(s) thereof in this regard subject to that the 
same does not exceed the ceiling as provided in the said 

resolution.

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory 
amendment, modification or relaxation by the Central 
Government to Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 , 
the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to vary 
or increase the remuneration including salary, commission, 
perquisites, allowances, etc. within such prescribed limit 
subject to that the same does not exceed the ceiling as 
provided in the said resolution and the said terms of 

appointment of Mr. Sushil Kumar Agrawal, be suitably 
amended to give effect to such modification, relaxation or 
variation without any further reference to the members/
shareholders of the Company in general meeting. 

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to take all such steps as may be necessary, 
proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the recommendation and 
approval of managerial remuneration to be paid to Mr. 
Sushil Kumar Agarwal, Whole Time Director & CEO, by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee be and is hereby 
approved and adopted and forwarded for the approval 
of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company as per the notice of Annual General Meeting. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors or the Secretary of 
the Company be and is hereby authorised to make necessary 
application to the Registrar of Companies and filing of any 
statutory forms or other related documents for seeking 
desired approvals for the payment remuneration and to do 
all such act and things as may be necessary in this regard.” 

					     BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD
					     FOR Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

PLACE: JAIPUR		 SHARAD PATHAK
DATE: 23rd May, 2014	 COMPANY SECRETARY
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A)	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (MEETING) IS ENTITLED 
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD 
OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE 
A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The proxy form duly 
completed and signed, should be lodged with the Company, 
at its registered office at least 48 hours before the time of 
the meeting.

B)	 All documents referred to in the notice and the explanatory 
statement requiring the approval of the Members at the 
Meeting and other statutory registers shall be available for 
inspection by the Members at the registered office of the 
Company during office hours on all working days between 
11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on all days except Saturdays, 
Sundays and public holidays, from the date hereof up to 
the date of the annual general meeting.

C)	 No person shall be entitled to attend or vote at the meeting 
as a duly authorized representative of anybody corporate 
which is a shareholder of the Company, unless a copy of 
the resolution appointing him/her as a duly authorized 
representative, certified to be a true copy, shall have been 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less 
than forty eight (48) hours before the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the meeting.

D)	 In case you have any query relating to the enclosed Annual 
Accounts or about the operations of the Company, you 
are requested to send the same to the Company Secretary 
at the Registered Office of the Company at least seven (7) 
days before the date of Annual General Meeting so that the 
information can be made available at the meeting.

E)	 Members/proxies should bring the attendance slip duly 
filled in for attending the Meeting.

	 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
write their folio number in the attendances slip and hand it 
over at the entrance of the meeting hall.

F)	 The relative Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 
102(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (corresponding to 
173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956), in respect of the 
special business under item No. 4 to 5 are annexed hereto.

					     BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD
					     FOR Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

PLACE: JAIPUR		 SHARAD PATHAK
DATE:23rd May, 2014	 COMPANY SECRETARY

Notes
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Explanatory Statements

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(2) of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 4

The Board of Directors of the Company envisages requirements 

of funds in future. As per the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, the Board can borrow money subject 

to the condition that the money to be borrowed together with 

the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from the 

temporary loans obtained from the Company’s bankers in the 

ordinary course of business) shall not exceed the aggregate, for 

the time being, of the paid-up capital and free reserves, that is 

to say, reserves not set apart for any specific purpose unless the 

Shareholders have authorized the Board to borrow the monies 

up to some higher limits. 

Hence, it is proposed to empower and authorize the Board of 

Directors of the Company to borrow money from any Bank(s), 

Financial Institutions (FIs,), Foreign Institutional Institutions 

(FII’s) Bodies Corporate or Business Associates or other any 

person or entity etc., in excess of paid up capital and free 

reserves of the Company by a sum not exceeding H1,500 Crores 

(Rupees One Thousand Five Hundred Crores Only) for the 

purposes of business activities of the Company. 

The resolution as set out at item no.4 of the notice is placed 

for your approval of the aforesaid limits of borrowing by the 

Board upto an amount not exceeding H1,500 Crores (Rupees 

One Thousand Five Hundred Crores Only) or equivalent thereof 

in any foreign currency(ies). 

With a view to meet fund requirements for the aforesaid 

purpose, the Company would be required to borrow funds from 

time to time by way of loans or in any other form whatsoever 

and / or issue of bonds, debentures or other securities 

The said borrowings/ issue of securities may be required to be 

secured by way of mortgage / charge over all or any part of the 

movable and / or immovable properties of the Company and 

as per the provisions of Section 180 (1) (a) of the Companies 

Act, 1956, the mortgage or charge on all or any part of the 

movable and /or immovable properties of the Company, may 

deemed as disposal of the whole, or substantially the whole, of 

the undertaking of the Company and hence the approval of the 

shareholders of the Company is required by way of an ordinary 

resolution.

As per Section 180(1) (a) and 180(1) (c) and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, approval of the 

members is sought by way of an ordinary resolution. Hence, 

the Board of Directors recommends passing of the enabling 

resolution mentioned at item No. 4 in the notice. Your Directors 

recommend the above resolution for your approval. 

None of the Directors is concerned or interested in the said 

resolution.

Item No. 5

Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal was appointed as Whole time 

Director & CEO of the Company w.e.f Jan 10, 2013, at a 

remuneration of H48,00,000/- per annum, as per the approval 

of the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 31st March, 

2013 and further approval of the shareholders of the Company 

in the Extra Ordinary General  Meeting of the Company held on 

22nd April, 2013.

Further the remuneration of Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal, Whole 

time Director & CEO was increased to H1,00,00,000/-, per 

annum (w.e.f  1st April, 2013) as approved by the Nomination 

& Remuneration committee, Board and further approved by 

shareholders of the Company in Annual General Meeting held 

on 26th August, 2013.

Now it is proposed to increase the remuneration of Mr. Sushil 

Kumar Agarwal, Whole time Director & CEO of the Company 

upto H1,30,00,000/-(Rupees One Crore Thirty Lacs only) per 

annum, as approved by the Nomination & Remuneration 

committee and Board w.e.f  1st April, 2014. As per the 

provision of the Companies Act, 2013, read with schedule V, 

thereof, approval of shareholders is required for the purpose. 

Hence, the Board recommends the resolution for your approval 

by the way of special resolution.

The above also be treated as an abstract under the terms of 

contract/agreement entered into between the Company and 

Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal, Whole time Director & CEO pursuant 

to the section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Director is interested in the above resolution except 

Mr. Sushil Kumar Agarwal himself.

					     BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD
					     FOR Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

PLACE: JAIPUR		 SHARAD PATHAK
DATE:23rd May, 2014	 COMPANY SECRETARY
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--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Resolution No.:

1………………………….........…..2………………………….......….. 3………………......…………….. 4……….....…………………. 

5………………….............……….

Signed this______________________ day of______ _____________2014

Signature of shareholder

Affix 
Revenue 

here

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 
Regd. Office: 19-A, Dhuleshwar Garden, Ajmer Road, Jaipur-302001

 www.auhfin.in
CIN : U65922RJ2011PLC034297

Au HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 
Regd. Office: 19-A, Dhuleshwar Garden, Ajmer Road, Jaipur-302001

 www.auhfin.in
CIN : U65922RJ2011PLC034297

Proxy Form

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting hall)

Fourth Annual General Meeting – July 22, 2014

Name of the member(s):__________________________________________________________________________________________

Registered Address:______________________________________________________________________________________________

E-mail ID:______________________________________________________	 Folio No:________________________________________

I/We, being the member(s) of Au Housing Finance Limited, holding _______________ no. of shares of the above named company, 
hereby appoint

1.	 Name:_____________________________	 Address:	 ____________________________

	 E-mail ID:__________________________	 Signature:	 ___________________________

2.	 Name:____________________________	 Address:	 ____________________________

	 E-mail ID:_________________________	 Signature:	 ___________________________

3.	 Name:____________________________	 Address:	 ____________________________

	 E-mail ID:_________________________	 Signature:	 ____________________________

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Fourth Annual General Meeting of the 
company, to be held on the 22nd day of July 2014 at 10:00 a.m. at the registered office of the Company at 19-A, Dhuleshwar 
Garden, Ajmer Road, Jaipur and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as indicated below:

I hereby record my presence at the FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at the registered office of the Company 
at 19-A, Dhuleshwar Garden, Ajmer Road, Jaipur -302001 on 22nd day of July 2014 at 10:00 a.m.

Full name of the member (In BLOCK LETTERS): ...............................................................................................................................

Folio No. ...................................................................... No. of Shares held....................................................................................

Full name of proxy (In BLOCK LETTERS): .........................................................................................................................................

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature: ..........................................................................................................................................................

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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